JUL-27-2009 09:&B0 F.001

2o - . jﬁ_

Interview with Elaine Ward

J. This is Jane Latour, interviewing Elaine Ward at the
Wagner Lakor Archives on Saturday, March 29th, 19397.

Okay, Elaine, I'd like you to tell me a bit about your family.
And tell me where you were born and your family background?

E. I was born in New York Hospital on July 27th in 1954, and
I spent my first couple of months in foster care. And I was
adopted, I think when I was about three months old, by Sam and
Leona Ward. They lived, for a little while, in New Jersey, but I
grew up in Ridgefield, Connecticut until I was in high school.
And then I went to Greenwich High School in Greenwich, Connecticut
because they moved to 0ld Greenwich. And I went to college, after
I finished high s&chool in 1972,--from 1972 to 1876,--at the
University of Minnesota in Minneapolis.

J. Well, let me ask you, what did your father do for work?

E. Oh, okay. Right. You asked me about my family. My
father is retired now, but he wasg an engineer in ... in physics. He
worked in the Research and Development departments of large
companies that usually had contracts with the government. And T
don't know a whole lot about his work, but he--in the '60s when
when the government cut back on military spending--a leot of
engineers started being out of work, and he had to do some
traveling to go to work. I remember he worked in Maryland during
the week and then would come home to Connecticut on the weekends.
And then there was another time when he worked in Massachusetts
and would come home on the weekends. My mother was ... Leona Ward
was originally trained to be a nurse, and she ... when my bro--
when they adopted me and my brother, my mother didn't work. And
‘when we were both in school, she went back to work and she became
an elementary school teacher. She had to go back and get

J. Certification?

E. Yaah, vyeah. They both had ... Both my parents got
college degrees, my father from Cornell and my mother did her
nursing at Rutgers. And then in Connecticut, she did her re-
certification and ... and became an el--a public elementary school

teacher for about twenty years.

J. Um~hum. Now, I remember you telling me once that vyour
brother wasn't interested in learning anvthing about plumbing or

e
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Didn't you tell me that once? And your Dad ... yvou worked
with your Dad doing household repairs? Isg that true? 2am I mixing
vou up with someone elsge?

E. {(laughs} I ... I wish it was true. My Dad ... No, my
Dad was ... My Dad did deo household repairs, Dbut he was not
particularly interested in teaching me anything about it. So you
must have been thinking of somebody else.

J. Somebody else.

E. But I like the idea. (both laugh) My ... Actually, ny
brother ... my brother had some troubles as a teenager, and when he
finally got done with high school, my parents said, you know, get
a job or go to college. 8o he went to community college and
for a year and a half and then dropped ocut and joined the Army.
and it was peacetime so he didn't go to war. He went through
basic training and that was a really good thing for him because the
digeipline of it and aliso the com-- ... the ... Let's zee ... He
got training in circuitry in the Army so he was able ... When he
got out of the Army he lived with my parents for a few years and
then ... and worked ... got a job right away for very good pay
because of his training in the Army.

J. What ... How did you develop wvour interest in ... in
learning about ...QOkay, vou went to c¢ollege. What were vyou

studying in colledge?

E. My major was studio art.

J. Um=-hum.
. E._ When I wag in .... between my junior and senior vear in .
high school T went to a summer craft program in ... in ... called

Haystack Hinkley in Hinkley, Maine, and I got really excited about
working with clay when I was there. And the teacher was really
excallent, and he taught at the University of Minnesota. So when
I applied to schoeols, I only applied te a couple, and I said to
myself, either I'm going to go the really heavy academic route or
I'm going to do something with my hands =20 ... and do something
with ceramicg. So ... the other two schools I applied to I didn't
get accepted, but the University of Minnesota fit my requirement
because it was far away from home and it was a very large school
at the time. There was fifty-five thousand students. &And it was
somewhere I'd never been before, s¢ I went there. And the teacher
that had been my teacher at Haystack, the summer school, took
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kind of took me under his wing and really, you know, encouraged
me much more than a lot of the other students. But by the time I
was ... by the time T had taken all the art courses, which was two
vears into my college, I started to realize that I knew very little
about the world and very little about what T wanted to do with my
1ife. And by the time I got to the last two years, I was not inte
being in school at all. And

J. Now, what yvears were these?
B. 1872 to 1876.

J. Okay. 8¢ this ig in the ... right in the Nixon post-War
Vietnam ersa,

E. Yeah.

J. so that was a very ... Were you part of the feminist
movement or anti-war movement or student movement?

B. Well, actually, ;when I was in high school, T had two
friends,--one was a year older than I and one was two years older
than T-- The woman who was two years older than I was my best
friend, --we organized in high school around the Kent 3tate tragedy.
T think that was 1968, if I remember, '68 or '635.

J. '68 or '69. (* Kent State - May 4%, 1970)
E. Yeah. But anyway ... Aand we organized a sit-in at my

at my high school. And I remember that I had a math teacher who
was like somebody from the Marineg or something. He was very, very

discipline oriented, and I remember I got ... He, bacauzse we staved
out of.clase that. day..... I.don't remember what the punishment
was, but I remember that there was a punishment. and, for example,
that year ... that year I was in high school was the last year of
that building. It was a very old building and with a lot of
stairs, and very crowded stailrways when ... There were over a
thousand students in my ... in my high school, and so I remembar

... e had bells. We had three minute bells to switch classes.
And wmy English class was on the bottom of the first floor and my
his math class was way on the end of the third floor at the
other end of the building. And if you didn't make it in three
in the three minute bell, you got ... T think it was fifteen
minutes vou had to stay ... we had to stay afrer school for every
minute we were late on the bell. But that was just an example.
this guy was so authoritarian. But anyway, that ... we organized
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arcound the FKent State situation. And I remember the first
meoratorium march in Washington. My parents wouldn't allow me to
go. Mozt of my friends had gone. When I was in college, I was in
the first class... they had no Women's Studies class at that
time, but I was in the wvery first ... very first class that was
the, like, test class to see if there was going to be women's
studies c¢lasses in the ... in the ... in the University. 2and of
course, after that thare were and have been since. And

. What ... Did they do history or literature or what,
mostly?

E. It wag more like an overview. There was a woman who was
a scholar from, I believe, szomewhere in Ohio or Illineis, and cshe
was well koown., And T don't remember har name, but she came
she was hired to come up and teach the course. It was ... I would
gay it was a combination of history and literature and kind of an
overview.

J. Yeah. 8o you decided that vou didn't know much about the
world, and where did that lead you?

E. Well, 1t was not a good time in my life. I ... One of
the things that our department .. The head of the Art Department
was a photography teacher and he was married to a woman who had
family in a place in Mexico,--a little village in Mexico. 2and so,
my ceramics teacher and this art tea-- ... this photography teacher
organized a trip to Mexico during the summer for a ... for some art
students who wanted to go down there and get some credit while
being down there. And that was the impetus for me to ... Well,
that was part of the impetus for me to realize I didn't know very
much about the world, 'cause it was really ... You know? , I was
out of the country and I was ... We bad classes ... We staved in

this little village where this teacher's family was from--teachers’

wife's family was from, and we had c¢lasses for three days and then
we had four days to be out on our own. So it was really my first
time kind of really on my own. 2And I kind of realized the world
was a much bigger place. And T also had .. The ceramics teacher
was pressing me, when I got back to Minnesota, to--you know--kind
of make a decision about how committed I was to--you know--
following a path in ceramics. And at the time, the students who
did well were encouraged and did go to graduate scheool. Anéd then,
upon completing graduate school, they usually got teaching jobs at
some well-known university or college, and then had a studio, and
then did shows and .., 8¢ I was ... I wasg an undergraduate and T
wags young,--I was very young,--and I was ... You know? He was



JUL-27-2009 09:&B0 F.00B

mostly working with graduate students in this serious kind of way
so he ... 2and I remember even once, I think, he said to me, "Shit
or get off the pokt,"--you know? Pardon the expression, but it's
You know? T had to ... You know, I was ... I felt very pressurad
to make up my mind. And in feeling pressured, I didn't--vou know, -
—that made it even harder for me, and I did not want to .. At that
time, T did not want to commit myself probably to anything, but
specifically, to following that particular path.

J. Um-hum.

E. So what happened ... What I did was--which is something
T'm not particularly proud of,--but what I did was I didn't finish
college. I mean, I remember I ... It's funny. I remember I used

to laugh about the people who made it through four years and then,
like, had--vou know--half a dozen credits left and dropped out. I

J. Um-hum.

E. It was not my ... not my conscious intention to be ... to
drop out. However, what I did was T got ... I was not taking care
of myself very well and I got mono. I went to summer school and
then TI--vou know,--to make up some credits. T kept taking art
history courses and it was so ... The ... the work we had to do

reminded me of high school. We had to write papers and it was
really boring to me. It was not interesting to me at all. It was
not something I wanted to do, so I kept getting incompletes. And
I piled up enough incompletes so that I dida't have the
requirements T needed to graduate. I was lacking thirteen credits.

And T went to summer school and I ... I .... I couldn't face that
T didn't want to do this any more. So anyway, I didn't finish
sehool end I -went- home, -2nd L. ..--you. know =T fold. my parents.

I felt so ashamed that I didn't finish that I told my parents
my degree was coming in the mail. Of course, it wasn't, but--you
know--and after a while, they knew it. But anyway,

J. Um-hum.

E. I went ... the bottom line ig that I worked a lot of odd
jobs. I lived at my parents' house and worked a lot of odd Jjobs,
and I ... T started looking for ... I started trying to--guote--
nfind myself." I mean, I didn't really think of it that way, at
the time. But in hindsight

J. Um-hum.

ol
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E. and through the process of doing a lot of different
things, --one of them being therapy and the other one ... I finally
realized that I needed to--you know--get those thirteen credits
taken care of, and I went to community college. And the funny
thing was that, even after I went to community college in ... in
Connecticut to get ... to take the courses,--which also, at the
time, was difficult for me bhecause school was something I didn't
want to have any part of,--I ... even after I had the courses I
needed, I still waited till I contacted the University and--you
know ... It wag a couple of years when they told me--you know--I
had already ... I thought I didn't even have the credits finished
that I needed and it turned out that I did. BAnd then

J. So did you finally get your degree?
E. Yeah, I finally got my degree. In 1378,

J. In 1878.

E. They sent me the certificate saying that I had a Bachelor
of Fine Arts from the University of Minnesota.

J. So what ... what jobs led vou to ... to the realization
that vyou wanted to go into the ... How did you end up in the
apprenticeship program of the Plumbers?

E. Okay. Well, ... I ... I guess evervthing I did between

in my twenties, which ... everything I did when I was in my
twentlies led me to the aware--finally led me to the awareness,
when I reached my thirties, that I did not have any skiill, --

J. Um-hum.

E. any specific gkill or ... or I did not have ... It's not
that I didn't have any specific gkillg, I didn't have what I needed
to have a career. 2and I thought to myself, if I want to ... And

everything T was dolng was either something that I didn't enjoy
and/or there was no monsy,

J. Um=-hum.

E. and I was really surviving really minimally, --you know,--
working--you know--minimum wage kind of jobs, and a lot of times,
having to work more than one job at a time to ... just to survive.
and most of the things that I really wanted to do,--which is why I
would work three or four jobs,--didn't inveolve money, but they were
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things that I needed money to do. and so I thought: Well, I have
to find a way to have a lucrative livelihood. And I'm in my
thirties. I need to get myself trained. And I always liked doing
physical work so ... I worked for four years at this feminist
vegetarian restaurant 1n Bridgeport, Connecticut, called Blood
Root . And that wazs a wonderful experience, but I was always a
part-time worker there and ... But that really ... that ..... I
thought maybe that I was going to end up--you khow--staying.,
becoming a par--. That was a ... They were organized on the
basis of being a collective, and I thought that--you know--I might
end up being a partner. But it didn't happen that way. So I

that's really what T ... That's what 1 was doing right before 1
realized--vou know--to myself ... I was living in Connecticut, and
the things ... the extra ... the additional activities that I

wanted to have in my life and other skills I wanted to learn were

were things they were doing in New York City. So I theught:
Well, I think I want to move to New York City, and I need to ... I
want to get a ... a job in ... in a trade union because that's
where I'll get trained, and that's where I'll possibly have the
opportunity of ?? livelihood.

F. So how did you get the idea ... I mean, it seems fairly

a large jump from going to school and ... and majoring in art
and being raised up in ... in Greenwich, --in 014 Greenwich, --to the
trades. So what ... what was happening? How did your awareness of
what was going on in New York City ... How did vou learn about
that?

what did you hear that attracted you?

E. Well, T ... I ... It'snot ... I skipped a lot. It's

not really a large jump because, when I was a kid ... When T was

wamyaungmteanagexrﬁryuumknomreirNWﬁa,alwayswa“bigmigil“ﬁgrmmﬁmPgmgﬁw"
to New York, and I used to--yvou know ... I mean, I'd tell my

parents that I was going to meet somebody at the train and--you

know--I'd go in there by myself. I mean, I thought New York was

the place,--you know? And I always used to say to myself,--you

¥know, --well, I'd like to live there. And the other thing is that-—-

vou kpnow,--my parents were both fairly ... because they were both
educated, -~I think the reason is because they were both educated,
they ... they and they had interests in cultural kind of things,--
they also took us to ... They took us to New York. they took us

to plays. They toock us on vacations to see dif--yvou know,--to go
different places in the country.

J. So ... so what was happening in New York that you heard
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about that ... that made vou think of going into a trade union and
an apprenticeship program?

E. Well, T don't think it was that T ... I'm tryving to think
now. I got

J. Did you see stories about women going into the trades or
hear about NEW (Nontraditional Employment for Women) or

E. No, I ... not initially. I ... When T ... When I was
working at Blood Root, the women at Blood Root owned a house that
they rented out, in addition to the restaurant they owned. And
this woman named Phyllis Chesler came up to the restaurant. 2and
she was working on a book. She ... I became friendly ... I was
renting part of the house. There was a small apartment in the
houge that I was living in, at the time. And she rented the rest
of the house to work on her book and I became friendly with her.

And I helped her ... 5he asked me to help her with some of the
research on the book. And she was working on--0Oh boy! It was
It was a chapter on women and viclence, and I ... it was really

interesting to me. S§o anyway, we became friendly.
J. Um-hum,

E. And after she leit Blood Root, she lived in Brooklvn &0 T

used to ... I continued--you know--having contact with her and
that was ... she was one of the reasons I used to go to New York.
I was ... I had a little Volkswagon Bug and I used to drive into

New York about four or five times a week. I had met a woman who, -
-a deaf woman at the time, that I became cloze with, and =0
And I ... and I also was going to martial arts classes at the
Women's Karate School in Brooklym.

~J. Um-hum.

E. 5o really what happened was, at the Women's Karate School,
I met a woman who was a carpenter, and she wag the one who told me
that the Plumbers Union was giving out applications. And she told
me, ~-you know--to go stand in line--you know-~overnight, -~you know-
-and she said she would come and stand in line with me. And I
thought that was really

J. What was her name? Do you remember?

E. Susan ... It'll come to me. I ... I feorget her last
name, But anyway,

T

.,
o
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J. 8o you did that?

E. Well, what happened was I ... I thought to myself: Well,
if this woman who I ... who's basically just an acquaintance, is
going to do this for me, I could .... is willing to do this for
someone she hardly knows, I could de this for myself. I remember
thinking that. And what ... what

J. And what did you think about the idea of being a plumber?
T mean, did you investigate, what does this involve and ...

E. No. No.

J. But you didn't think,--you know--like immediately, I can't

E. Ne. I just ...
J. A lot of people, I think, would think I can't do this.

E. No. I thought: I want to go for something that is golng

to get ... is going to get me a lucrative liveliheood.
J. Um-hum.
E. and I ... T ... I just remember ... I did not do any

research other than this woman telling me she'd come and stand in
line with me, and I thought that was really great. And she

Actually, I had started living in New York. I ... that summer,--
the summer that I was going to stop working at Blood Reot,--I had
a newspaper delivery route. I worked for a pizza shop, and I did

house sitting and house cleaning. BAnd them ... because my work at
 Rlomd Root. was part-time so I gould fit in all these other part-
time jobs.
J. Yeah.
E. But anyway, I ... I what I did was, I got together enouah
money to pay the first ... security and first menth's rent on a

on an apartment.
J. Where?
E. In Brocklyn, in Park Slope.

J. Um-hum.
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E. DPhillis Chesler lived in Park Slope and the Karate School
was in Park Slope, and so ... My parents had moved to California
for three years 'cause my father was still working, and part of the
deal with this company was to go to California. So what I did was,
I went ... I was house sitting ... Right before I went to
Ccalifornia, I was house gitting for some women that were involved
in the Women's Music Festival and ... up in Connecticut. And so I
went up there ... I moved all my stuff to New York.

J. Um=-hum.

E. I went up there. Then I went to California and came back
from California and moved inte this apartment. And it's pretty
nutty when I think about it now, but I moved to New York with just
the first months' rent paid. And T had no meoney and no job;--

J. So

E. neo bank account ... Nothing. I ... I ... This woman
said she would go stand in line with me, and that was like a really
big deal to me. So it was October lst, 1985, and she ended up not
standing in line with me. She called me and told me that she was

sick and ... But that's when I said to myself: Well, if she was
willing to do this for me, I could do it for myself. So, actually,
I was delivering pizzas, at the time, =2till, and I went to ... SO

I came down to New York at 6:30 in the morning to stand in line.
J. Um=-huim.
E. I remember parking my car way over on the west side and

walking to the line on 26th Street. And it was already three
blocks long. I

J. And were there women there that you saw,--any wemen?

E. Well, the only woman I saw was this woman who was stand--

She was up from Florida visiting, and she was an older woman,
and ghe was standing in line to make sure her grandson got an
application. The line was three blocks long when I got there, and
T stood in the line for nine hours. And

J. What kind of exchanges did you have with the males, --with
the men on line?

E., I didn't really talk to anybody.

5’\ﬁ5 

>



JUL-27-2009 09:&B0 F.011

J. They didn't talk to you?

E. I didn't talk to anybody. I mean, I don't ... I don't
remember. I just remember being really focused on thinking that
this was pretty incredible that I was going to get that
application. And I stood in the line until three o'clock in the
afternoon. It took that long to get to the front of the line. And

I got application three hundred and ... I believe it wag three
hundred and fifty-seven. They were only giving out five hundred.
There were police barricades up. See, in the beginning, people

ware getting off the line. Guys were getting off the line, T
guess, to go to the gtore. Angd I remember they were catgealling the
women on ... who were ... the working women who were walking on the
straet, 'causge i1t was a working day. and the police were out
there, I guess, Lo make sure that nothing got really-yvou know--
violent. And there were police barricades up-—vou know--for the
lin=e. And eventually they, they ... at some point they decided, —-
the police decided that nobody could get out of the line because
some of the guys were, like, fighting each other. But I remember,
I made a very conscious effort in my mind. I ... You know. I
didn't drink anvthing that morning or eat anything. I didn't eat
anything all day because I didn't want to have to pee. (laughs)
2nd T also remember I had my ... I was really interested in the
women's tarot,--this women's tarcot book I had at the time, and I
just kind of used that as a focusing tool. And anyway, when I got
the .... T had ... I had ... Somebody had told me to contact NEW
when I was ... Some time passed between ... There was some time
that passed between the time T found out about--«yvou know--the
October lst line and October lst, so I remember I had called NEW.
And T was teold to--vou know--call them back after I had gotten the
application. 5o

J. Um-hum. 8o what was the process? You got to the front of

‘ﬁﬁémiine and they asked you questiong?

E. No. I think T just ... Actually, I shouldn't say no. I
don't remembar if I was asked questions. I think ... I think I
was asked for my, like, social security card and driver’s license
and birth certificate. Something like that. But I don't remember

I don't remember anyvthing very significant about that.

J. So you got it. Then what happened after that?
. Oh well, I got the application. T called NEW and T star—--

I went over to NEW a couple of times. Well, probably more than
a couple of times. But there wasg a wonderful woman over there. T
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believe her name was Terry Gordon. She was working there. She was
the, I guess, employment specilalist or whatever you would call her,
and she ...--you know--they helped us ... There were some other
women over there doing appli--trade applications too, and they
helped us f£ill out the application. You know? I remember I had to
get like a resume type thing together. And they helped me put the
information down so it looked efficient and professional. And they
helped me word it in a way that looked--you know--appropriate.
and so I sent ... I sent the application in. And then I had

Can yvou turn the tape off? 0h, okay. So anvway, NEW helped

NEW helped me with all the different steps of getting prepared for
the different parts of the application process. First, there was
the ... sending in the application, and vou only had to have a high
school diploma or equivalency, you know?

J. Um-hum.

E. that was the bottom line. And then there was an
interview. 2nd there was an aptitude test, and there was a
physical. And then there was ... And in between each of these

things there was maybe six weeks or elight weeks time period.

J. Was there any section of the aptitude test that you had
trouble with?

E. No. The kind of preparation I had was really good. They

We had ... We had to turn over pegs and, with a pencil, we
had to do a computer type ... Our computer scored tests was some
math and some ... A lot of it was geared towards spacial

relations. For example, they gave us pictures of five different
shapes, and maybe two were different. And we had to say which

ones were different or ... and different things like that. Anyway,
the preparation that T received was very good so that when I went
into the ... test, I was confident and--you kneow--not ... not

nervous at all.
J. Um-hum.

E. So that was really ... that was really a plus. What was
I going te say? Oh, when I went to the interview ... Each time I
had to wait for a letter sgaying that I could go on to the next part
of the procedure. And I went ... the interview I went to, I
dressed very conservatively. I remember I had a pants suit on and
no makeup, and I was only asked three gquestions. I was asked, did
I know the starting wage, and I guessed it to be higher than it
wag. I thought it was eight deollars an hour., It was only six. It

.\\ ?,- . \
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was six~-oh-five when I started, actually. and I was asked 1f I was
afraid of heights and high places, and of course, I said no.
Really, T didn't know if I was or not, but T was ... I wanted in so
I had better say no. And the other thing I was asked was, was I
married. And

Sidea 'fwo
J. Qkavy.
E. 8o the third question I wasz asked was I marrisd. And I

was really surprised because when I told them no, I wasn't, they
also seemed happy. And I was surprised at that, too, because in

most ... most places ... mosgt experiences in my life ... You know,
our culture seems geared toward--you know--women who are the wife
of somebody, or whatever. But any way ... And I didn't even know

until later on that--you know, --asking me if I was married was not
legal. They were not supposed to do it, But I,--vou know,--at the
time it didn't occur to me because I didn't care, you know? I
wanted in so bad. Anyway

J. 8o they didn't give vou any little lectures about this is
a really rough field for

E. No, I didn't hear any ... I mean ... I mean, it was so
ghort. I was just so surprised. I was nervous and I--you know--
'cause I didn't know what I was going to be asked, yvou know? I
kind of ... It was almost like the feeling like--you know--it was

just a formality, like maybe they had already decided--vou know, —-
that T was going to be in. But I didn't know for sure yet,--you
Know?

J. Um-hum.

E. I had to wait and get--you know--get the letter saying I
could get in. and when I got the letter ... I geot the letter
saying that I ceould go to school,

I received the letter a week later than the day I was suppozed to
have been in school. And so, I had te make up my first class.

J. Um=-hum,

E. And at the time, T was working for a woman cabinet maker.

She wasz not Union. She was somebody I had met at the karate
school T was going to, and she lived a few blocks away from where
I was living. Band,--you know-~I ... when ... I remember I went to
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the apprentice school for about three and a half months before I
was put to work on a plumbing Fjob.

J. And they found the job for vou, the Union?

E. Well, eventually. But the significant ... There were
some significant conditions to this situation. One was that I had
to take a day off from the cabinet making job to go up to the Bronx
to go to the apprentice school because the apprentice school was
during the day. 2And everybody who wasg ... I thought this was
reallly unfa-- ... what was going on was really ... was really
unfair from the get go. I mean, they didn't want me in the Union
from the get go, in my opinion, because all the guys,--and all the
rest of the people in my c¢lass were guys,--were all working. I was
the only apprentice who was not working. and in general,
apprentices are always working in the ... In '86, there wasn't the
extreme unemployment that there has been since about 1%90. But

J. So now that they found their jobs.
E. Well, T ... in hindsight I can say that a lot of them had

connections either with their fathers or with--you know--friends of
their family.

J. Um~-hum,.

E. Some of them had been working even before they started
apprentice school. Some ... A lot of them were the sons of
members already. they ... I went to ... You know, we ... when we

went to apprentice school, we had to sign in and we had to put down
who we were working for or if we weren't working. And T remember
at one time, the teacher asking me if I was ... if T had another
Job,--1f I was working somewhere. And I said ves. I was. working.
for a cabinet meker. And he said, well, at least you're working
with tools. And the other thing was that all these guys that were
going to work for ... Plumbing contractors hired ... working
hiring out of Local 2, were getting paid for the day and I ... and
they were already on the clock to get their benefits, because you
had to work six months. You had to have six months of work time in
before you could ... before the contractors would start paying into
your benefite. So the first thing was that I wasn't getting paid
for the day I went to school.

J.  Um-hum,

E. And I had to take time off without pay from the cabinet
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making job. And my ... I started working in June, finally, and so
my benefits didn't start until December while all these other
guys' benefits started in July. I did get my raise in July. I
mean, one of the ... Part of the deal was,~-and this is part of
what attracted me to the Union ... There were two things that
attracted me into getting into the Plumbers Union. One was that we
got, every six months we got a ralse autcomatically. 2And at the end
of four years, we ... if we went to school and did our best to do
what was recquired of us, we would automatically be given this
wonderful --wonderful hourly rate of pay which, at the time, was
I don't know~-was morée than twenty dollars an hour. BRut

J. Now, tell me about the

E. Let me just tell you the other thing. the other thing
was,--and I kind of ... after I got involved in the apprenticeship,xf
T put it out of my mind,—-but I do remember thinking the Union is
all around the country,--yvou know? The Locals are all around the
country, and Union--card holding union members with their dues
paid up, can travel.

J.  Um-hum.

E. and that was ... that was a hot button for me, the idea of
traveling to ... working and traveling.

J. Um-hum.

E. Traveling te work.

J. Um-hum.
.. ', . but, . .of  eourse,  when I got  invoelved. _in . the
apprenticeship, --you know--I didn't ...--you know,--that kind of
wasg put in the back ... on the back burner.

J. Now tell me about the level of instruction? And how did
you find both the instructors relating te you and your fellow
students? How did you find the instruction in terms of learning
yvour trade in the apprentice school? :

E. Well, the instructors were very good, and the particular
instructors that I had were knowledgeable and .. knowledgeable
about the subiject and knowledgeable about how to communicate it.
I was the only female sco T was, most of the time, I was not that
comfortable with myself because I wasn't used to being in a
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clagssroom with--you know--only men.
J. Um-hum.

E. &And I remember a couple of the students were willing to
help me out when we had shop. The way that the instruction was
divided up was half the day was in classroom training--book
learning, --and the other half was in the ... the shop. And by shop
I mean they .. we had a ... part of the school, aside from the
classrooms, was work areas where we could work on different
projects. and they gave us different projects to do that were like

mini ... mini little samples of the kinds of different material and
tools we'd be working with when we were on the job. I mean, there
igs no ... no replacement for actually on the job,

]
J. On the job.

E. because many of the ... I mean, I learned many things
that T didn't ... that T never got to work on until quite a long
time later. And quite a long time later, I didn‘t really
understand how to do that particular thing until I had done it

encugh.
J. Um-hum.

E. 2nd the way vou really learn is by the repetition of

doing. 8o ... And in the context ... I mean, the context of a
little shop is very different from the context of an actual
building project. And the other thing is that in ... in a school
environment they teach you as if you were in ideal circumstances,
and none of the jobs were ever ideal c¢ircumstances. And none of
the people that T worked with ... I mean, it was all in degrees,
you. know?. .. Some. people were moare. . ... . Some of the guvs that I

worked with were more concerned about looks and more concerned
about the technique than others. And some guys I worked with--you
krnow--were either less skilled or less concerned about the skill of
their work, even though the pipe would end up functioning after it
was inctalled. So there was quite a ... I mean, I learned in the
field there was quite a variation on what could happen after we all
supposedly received the same training.

J. Yeah.
E. Yeah. So

J. So now, how ... how did you survive that isolation of

i \\@



JUL-27-2003 09:561 F.017%

being the only female? And did you develop relationships, --cronies
that you paled around with? Or

E. Well, no. I gur-- ... I guesg I would gay I survived by

by stubborn pergisting, persevering, strong willed state of
mind that--vou know? I had & bee line for the end of the road,
which wag the journevman's card, which I said to myself: Well,
nothing's going to--yvou know--get in my way. Or whatever gets in
my way iz not going to stop me from getting that ZGourneyman's
card. Because once I had a journeyman card, I had a ticket, in my
mind, —-you know--

J. Um-hum.

E. a ticket te having a certain value that was greater than,
most likely, any other job I could regeive,--you know--with the
kind of trainine. Se ... So,——-you know, --that was ... that was
the bottom line.

J. Um-hum.

E. But in terms of day to day stuff, I--yvou know,--I ... I
thought if T did everything I was supposed to do and then some, I
would ... that would put me in the right light in the eves of the
men, But,--you know,--a lot of things I thought were not ... I

ended up learning, were not really the way things happened.
J. Um-hum.

E. but I did ...NEW had .. a support ... NEW had, I think
they were monthly meetings, NEW had meetings where tradeswomen
came together, so--you know,--I went to those meetings. And,--vyvou

Lknow-=there. were  other npeople . in  my life--vou. know-=-whao were
supportive towards me, even if they weren't ... you know,--even if
they weren't involved with me in terms of the ap--being an
apprentice, they were involved with me as a person,--yvou know. You
know, I didn't tell my parents becauge--you know--my parents never
would have been ... My paren-- ... I think my paren--- You know,
I never heard this from my parents now this way, but I do bhelieve
that my parents were expecting me to go to college to meet a man to
get married and be a Thousewife and have kids because,
unfortunately, my father used to tease me when I wag a kid. It was
a little bit painful. He used to say,--you know,--you're going to
grow up to be a bhad lady, ha, ha. 2And my ... And then, later on
in life--you know--TI heard from my father: Well, --you know,--when

when are we going to hear the pitter patter of little feet.
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And--vou know--I said,--you know, -—vou'd better speak to my brother
(laugh=z) about that.

J . Did your ... Did your parents ever ... I mean,
eventually you told them that you're a plumber, --a Journeyman
plumber-- and ...

E. Yeah. T den't remember exactly when I told them. My
parents were in .. Actually ... actually, my parents did send me
money, 1 remember, the first yvear T was in New York. I shouldn't
say they weren't supportive because il's true, pecple give their
support in different ways,--Yyou know. and gometimes they won't
necessarily come out and say, well, we like what you're doing,--you
know. We applaud you. But,--you know--they'll do things like send
money or ... So I remember, I--you know, --I remember the struggle
in New York City in the beginning because I was sS© broke. Sometimes
when I started the apprenticeship, I didn't ... I remember, when I
started the apprenticeship, I was partnered ... When I
Actually, after T started the apprenticeship and I finally got put
to work, I remember going to Pete Marzec, who at that time, was the

head of the apprenticeship school. And he would say ... gy -

remember one time, he said to me, Well, the Union's not exactly
open arms to women. He said, You have to be a pest. And nobody
bafore had told me that,--you know? So I'd ... I called the Union
hall every davy for a week and I didn't get to speak to any of the
Business Agents. I mean, it finally dawmed on me after a couple of
monthe and T wasn't ...--you know, --nobody was telling me anything
about going to work, and I needed to go to work, --you know--that
T'd better say something to somebody. So he,--you know,--he said,
vou have to be a pest. You have to call every day. So one day for
a weak T called every day, and usually I only got the secretary and
I left my name. So then the following week, I was at apprentice

. eghool. and. I . was..civen a . message that I was, the following

Monday, --it was June 16th, 1986,--I was supposed to go ... go to
meet another journeyman plumber ... journeyman plumber at a Jjob
site over on ... I think it was on First Avenue, on the esast side
in the '30s. It was 38th Street. Tt was the Carey building,
anyway. That was my first job. But ... Oh, T just lost my train
of thought. Darn. Anyway

' J. Tell me about that job? How did he receive you and ?7?

E. Oh, yeah. What I was going to say ... that's whai I was
going to say is ... I was ... gSometimes I was 80 broke that T
didn't even have money for coffee and I was too ashamed to agk the
guy to loan me money, you know? and the guy I was working with, he
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was like twenty-six years ... I was thirty-one. IHe was twenty-six
yvears old and he had been a Jjourneyman for a c¢ouple of years
already. And he had been a foreman for a while. And he was ... he
wag ... I was ... I mean, there's ... there's good in every--.
There's ... Scometimes, you can find good out of almeost everything.
The good ... He liked to brag about how much he knew. And the

good thing of that was that I got to learn a lot of stuff from him
because he did know a lot about the trade, and he did like to tell

other people what he knew. So ... But anyway, my ... I was just
going to say that I remember that, before I actually got into the
apprenticeship, I had ... my parents had sent me money. So I would
guess that, in that way, they were ... They were in California at

the time, --they were supportive.

J. Um-hum.
E. they sent me a check for five hundred dellars. That was
like a big deal. {laughs) But anyway, when I geot ... when I

started working--vou know,~-I Just tried really hard to do
everything I was told to do. And I remember thinking to myself,
Well ... When a delivery came, I'd grab the ...-—-vou know--I mean, X
within reason. But I,--you know--if there were two boxes and I
knew I could carry both, I'd grab the one that was heavier, --you
know--just because I had this idea that I would have to prove
mysgelf, ~-yvou know. I'd have to be there on time. I'd have to show
up for everything. I'd have to--you know--get along with the guy
that T was ... was teaching me. I was in ... in the Alterations
Division of this company which was buildings that were being
renovated, where the outside structure wasn't changing, just--you
know--maybe a couple of floors on the inside of the building. And
we were ... So in those situations, generally, there were
there were teams of two. And usually it was the journeyman with an
apprentice. .And the journevman was the foreman or the boss, so to
speak.

J. Um=hum.

E. And so, T had to ... I knew right away I had to get along
with the guy

J. Um-hum.

E. because I ... I needed to learn, and I needed the guy to
teach me whatever he knew. 8o, fortunately, thisz guy knew a lot
and I got along with him pretty well. I really ... I mean, part
of it, I guess ... In the beginning, T didn't know anything and I

e
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didn't know what to expect, =20 in a way that was a good thing.
But, --you know, --down the road--in hindsight, I realize that--you
know--I did a lot of things ... I mean, the way I ... the way I
carried mysgelf was ... was much so I ¢ould get through my
apprenticeship, --so much so I could get along with whoever I was
working with. 2nd even if I didn't necessarily want teo listen to
them, —-vou know,--listen to all the stories they wanted to tell me
and evervthing they wanted tec talk about, that that was ... kind of
came along with the territory. I mean, hobody said,--you know--
nobody sat me down and said, Well, these are the rules. You know,
when you get parthered up with somebody, vou have to listen to them
no matter what they say. And nobody said to me, vou don't have to
listen to them.

J. Yeah. Yeah.

E. so,--you know--me always ... You know, my brother was
You know, as a kid, my brother was the one who was--vou know, --the
rebellious one. T was the one who ... You know,--my rebellion
really wag limited by the fact that I always wanted my parents'
approval, so I always was ... If they said ne, well, I'd kick and
scream, but T didn't run away from home, vyou know? It was like
that deal. S0 the s=same in the t--. I think that that was my

behavior pattern already established, so that when I became an
apprentice, I was--you know,--I wanted and needed their approval in
my own mind, so I ... I thought, Well, T have to ... In order

In order to earn their respect, I have to listen te ...--you know, -
-I have to Cry teo participate 1n whatever cenversation's prasent
and--vou know,--do the best I can to make myself likeable.

J. Um-hum.
How. ... . How long did von work with him, about?

E. T worked with that guy for nine months and we got taken
from job to job. The shop would send a truck and we ... we would
have ... We had a gang box, a big ... a large tool box that was
usually on wheels, that we would bring to the truck. And we got
gent teo a lot of little jobs ... I zay little, I mean just a
couple of floors, where ... And the time that we stayed on any
particular job varied, but we usually would install all the piping
that would go in bhefore the walls went up. And then, when we were
done installing that piping, we leave and go to another job and do

the same thing. We were up in the Empire ... We were in ... We
were in the Empire State Building one time that I remember, --you
know ... One of the things I appreciated about the guy that I

sy T
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what T did. T used every possible avenue of complaint filing that
T could use, meaning ... We had a ... I filed grievances in my
union under the ... The only ... There was ... Really, saxual
harassment was not addressed in the Collective Bargaining Agreement
of Local 2, but there was a ... there was one little, very brief
sentence about not non--about not discriminating, so I used that.
and T also filed with the Human Rights Commission, and I filed with
the federal

J. State? 0Oh, federal.

E. the federal government. Yeah. The ... the one ... .Well,
T had ... I filed ... I ended up filing quite a few complaints.
But there only ... There were basically two that were significant.
And the one ... the one I want ¢ mention is ... Well, I guess
i'11 mention both of them. But one of them was ... I was ... I
was specifically shaping up at jobs that were federal ... that I
knew were federally funded, and one was the VA Hospital job. And
T went to the ... I went ... I did ... I did write to the superin--

T did contact the superintendent and I contacted the Business
Agent and I went to the job site a couple of times, and I had all
that in writing. I ... I filed a complaint asking the government
to look into the fact that possibly that contractor was not--you
know--up ... Up to speed on the amount of women that were employved.
So what happened was, I got a ... Did I get a letter? I think I
got a letter from the contractor saying that I could come down and
£i11 out an application to go to work. Now, so I did that. I went
to the contractor's office and filled out an application. Now, I

don't really under-- ... I mean, I didn't think about it at the
time because I was ... I wanted to go to work so badly. But most
most of my co-- ... most men I know do not have to fill out

applications in order to go to work. So it did kind of seem odd to

me. and_in hindsight I know what was going on. They, because I had

filed a complaint and they were being investigated, they"héd to
show that they were taking applications from women, so they naaded
a writ-- They needed a written record. So I went down there. I
filled out an application. And the person I spoke to gave me--who
I believe was the EE-- was an EBEQ officer for that contractor,--
gave me the impression that I was going to be work ... going to
work. She even salid to me, "Well, where do you want to work?" I
mean, I didn't even know where all the jobs were, much less that I
had ... might have a cholce.

J. Um-hum.

E. But anyway, I was given the impression that I was going to

yi
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go to work. S0 then, I remember, I went to ... As a matter of
fact, I went to an AUD meeting that was ... I believe it was in
Michigan. This was in April of ... March or April of 1%--T think
it was 1990--1991. Tt might have heen 1991. 2anvway, I came back
from that ... I came back from that meeting, and there was a letter
in my mailbox from the contractor, and the letter said ... the
letter =sald that this ... that ... that they were not ... they
were not goling to hire me becauge ... until ... because they #
realized that I was the one who filed the complaint and the com--
the comp--until the complaint wasg resolved,--yvou know,--they
wouldn't consider me for employment. So I thought to myself, Well,
gee, they just put it in writing. Bingo!--you know? Here we go!
We're on a roll! I took this down to the fellow at the government
office and I ... I did indeed have a case,--you know? Here was
Here was the contractor admitting in bold face that my supposed

ny supposed right to complain, --to ask for an investigation,--to
agk just for the--you know--company ... the company's business
dealings to be checked out, --

J. Um—hum.

E. just my right te ask was the reason that I was not going
to be hired. And anyway, 56 the upshot of that was that I did

indeed have a case. And since thig contractor did primarily
federally funded contracts: sewage treatment plants and VA
hospitals and jobs like that, that that was their main ... their’ \

main source, and that the clock was going to start ticking because
they had hired four men after they had taken my application and
told me that they were going to ... were going to hire me., 8o from
that what ... What then happened was, in September ... Yeah, it
wag 1991, because in September of 1991, I got a call and I was told
that I could go to work. They wanted to stop the clock on the back
pay they were going teo have to give me from the date that they
ghould have nired me. 7 50 I went to we¥K Hhd T worked tor six
weeks, and then I was laid off. And then the ... the casze that T
had ... the casge that I had initiated was, as it turned out, was to
take some Time, and it wasn't till 1954 ... I was traveling. I
had been in New York ... I had been in New York all of 1992 until
the fall when I started geoing out of town. And I had been back in
New York from 1993 till--let's see,--what was it?--March of 19--May
of 1993 to March of 1994 I was also in New York, and then I decid—-
I went out of town again to work inm 1994. 2And when I wag in Eansas
and I was visiting a Union hall to lock for work in Kansas, I got
a ... my parents called the Unicn hall that T ... My parents who
live in upstate New York, ... I had told them I was goling to
Ranesas, and T had ... I must have told them the unicon halls that I
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was going to visit. I doa't re--. You know I was staying at a
motel, and I had rented a car and I was driving to these different
Union halls to see if I could go to work. and my parents had
called one of the Union halls that I wag visiting to find out about
work, and my parents had left a message saying I should call home.
And when I called home, I found ... there was a message for me that
I was supposed to contact the lawyer about this caze.

J. Um-Muam.

E. and my choice, at the time, wasg ... Actually, the ... the
case was ... They were ... They wanted to get the ... They
finally wanted to get the case resolved, and it turned out that
they had gome to a ... they had trxacked down my ex-neighbor. I
mean, they had tracked down a neighbor in the ... in the building
that T used to live in to get a hold of my parents, to get a hold
of me. And apparently, they had gone through some--you know--some

csome inconvenience to get a hold of me. But meanwhile, I had

been in New vYork for quite a while and nothing was done on the

case. But what ... the bottom ... The upshet of that was I

didn't go to work in Kansas. I went to work in St. Louls. So from

St, Lou--from going to work in St. Louis, I had to decide over the

‘vahonéﬁYith this lawyer, would I accept the settlement for the

o $24009, which was the four months of back pay, or. did I want to

f/& come back to New York and--you know ... if the case would go to
~“trail, I would have to come :

J. 77

E. Yeah. And then I was told, well, i1f T litigated the
even 1f I won the case, the ... the contractor could appeal it, and
then they .... they might ..win the appeal, or it would be a long

~ time before I'd see any monay.

J. B0 you took the gettlement.

E. Yeah. I made ... I made ... It was a no win situation.
I .. Igot ... T ended up, after taxes, getting $11,000, and 1t all
paid .. All it did was pay debts. And--you know--the company
and I had to sign a thing sayving ... I believe T signed a ... I
have to go back and lock at the papers again. But I, 1f I remember
carrectly, I saved ... signed a thing saying that the company was
releagsed of any wrong doing. So they went about their business.

J. So what company was that?

>~;?
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E. Oh, that was F&B,--F&B Mechanical. The other situation
was the .. the ... I'd filed a complaint with the Human Rights
Commission against the contractor that I'd worked for as an
apprentice. I mean, there was just ... I mean, there wasg just so
much harassment. And I had testified in the ... in the New York

the Commission hearings ... The Commizgion on Human Rights had

hearings. Out of thosge hearings
J. Well, you testified. Right?

E. Oh yeah, I testified.

J. What did vou testify to?

E. I testified about the harassment in ... that I had
experienced during my apprenticeship. And I had worked for one
contractor. and I had filed & complaint with the Human Rights
Commiszgion, --you know--alleging that the contractor had laid me off
because I was female and not because of ... and not because of lack
of work,

J. Um-hum.

E. because there were many cases where they'd kept guys that
had worked for them their entire apprenticeship and went on to keep
them, even though things were getting slow. And I had tons and
tong of examples of harassment. And that case went to trial in

...0h, actually, we had a settle-- ... Well, actually, that case
want to a hearing in ,.. I filed that case in 1990, and in--let's
see, —-1991 there wagz a ... the end of 19--the end ... 1291 there
was a ... a hearing. and

~J. This is the Human Rights Commission?

E. Yeah. and I ... I agreed to a settlement of $18000 and
in damages, and I got thirty days' work. They had to put me
back to .. They had to put me back to work for a minimum of thirty

days. 8o thir--thirty days to the T, I got lald off.

J. Um-hum. Did they harass you when you were there? They
left you alone.

E. No. they were told not to, They were told not to harass
me. They were ... And then, when I got laid off after thirty days,
I was ... I filed another complaint sayving that T had been laid off
because they were ... I'd be fired ... I'd been laid off unfairly
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because I was--you know--they were still disgcriminating in that
they just did their thirty davs and that was it. And that ... that

that part of the complaint has not yet been resolved. But
anyway, in 1992 wasn't working for ten months, and I ... ©Oh, just
as an up note on that, I alse ... I ... I instigated some other
complaints. And what the Union would do is they ... There were a
couple of other women in the Local,

J.  Um-hum.

E. and those women got to go to work on the jobs that they--

you know-that I had been ... that I had been filing complaints on.
Also, T did gett one ... In ... When I ... In 1890 I did get one
job because I ... I did ... I did get one job because I shaped it
and shaped it and shaped it. And finally, I called up the Business
Agent and he sgaid ... Well, actually, I was in hiz office. I kept
bugging the Busginess Agent. And I was in his office and he did ...
this was not a federal ... I mean, this shows you how warped the
whole situation was. This was not a federally funded job. But I
gat across from the Businegs Agent and I ... he called up the

contractor and said, You got to put a woman down there. Okay? 5So
I got =zent down.

J. Um-hum.
E. 2and I think that was in the beginning before I really got

involved in all the political activity. And I think the guy did
that maybe just to get me off his case. I really don't know. but

I worked onn ... I got ... I was on that job for four months.
That was 52 Duane ... 52 Duane Street, It was a ... 52 Duane
Street? It was a fifty ... over fifty sgtorv condominium.

~J.  Yeah. A friend of mine lives there now.
E. ©Oh, yeah.

J. I'll have to tell her that you worked on that building.

E. Yeah.

J. Yeah.

E. Well, anyway, that job I ... I went to the shop steward
and I told the shop steward that there had to be a shanty. And--
you know,--I went ... I ... Some of the details I've forgotten,
but I was ona ... I ... I went on a seriousgs ... I was on a

lm\:
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serious thing there to make sura that that shanty was put in. And
I finally got the ghanty. And there was a lot of harassment on the
way to getting the shanty, but I got the shanty. And

J. Now, was the shanty for you,--for a female, or was it for
Plumbers? What was ...

E. Well, I was the only female on the job. {(both laugh)
J. 8o what ... Who was the shanty for?
E. Well, the ... the ... 8See, all the men had a change .. to

change clothing
J. Yeah.

E. Well, the men in each trade had their owmn shanty te .. to
change their clothes, ~--you know.

J. Um=-hum.

E. this was a new construction job. And our Collective
Bargaining Agreement--you know--there's supposed to be a ... I
forget the exact wording. At the time, I knew it very well:

satisfactory facilities--vou know--for the men.
J. Um-hum. Um-hum.

E. And, of course, it didn't say men and women. But anyway,

I ... I went to the steward, and I was persistent with the steward.
aAnd T teold the steward that ... I mean, I got ... I told the
steward that ... that ... that they needed to do this; that I

wasn't going to take no for an answer. And I
Jd. How long did it take?

E. Well, I was only on the 3job for four months, so T think it
tock like the first month I was there.

J. Um-hum.

E. Okay? And anyway, 2o that was, like, a significant
acconplishment because I don't think in our ... I think in our
T,ocal's history, that was the Lirst time,

J. Probably the only time.

e
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E. No. Actually, it was not the only time.
J. No?

E. When I as T said, I was the ... In 19--let's see,--in
1292, T went out of town. 2And I went out of town as a result of
meeting an iren worker in my neighborheod, I'd been out shaping
with a ... I used to go ocut shaping with other women, women who,
maybe, didn't want to go by themselves. I went by myself a lot.

J. Um-hum.

E. Buf I went ... I told women, like, at the NEW meetings,
I used to go there and I used to say,~--you know, --anybody who wants
to go szhaping, who doesn't want to go by themselves, I'll go with
vyou. And even ... I'll go with you even if we're going to a job
where only vou have the possibility of getting on. I mean, that
was no problem with me.

J. Um-hum.
E. I'd help anybody who wanted to do whatever. And so, there

was a couple of women that I shaped with periodically, --you know, --
two carpenter women that I shaped with, individually. And anyway,

one of the women, I remember, ... She had a car and we went out
We ... I used to only ... We used to only shape ... I used to
always mostly only shape early in the morning. but on this

particular occasion, we had a car and we went to some place out in
Brooklyn, places I wouldn't have gone to for me. But--you know,--
carpenters can work ... Lecal ... Lo=- .,. The other Plumbing
Local works in Brooklyn. My Local doesn't.

MJ:HW¥?§hEH

E. But her ... she could work in this eother ... $ghe was
trying to get on in a couple of the jobs, so we went. And when I
came back, she dropped me off. It wasg, like, three o’clock in the
afterncon, And I was in .,. I wag just by my neighborhood, and
this guy came up and started talking to me. And he ... I was
dressed in my work clothes. I always, when I went to a job site, -~
no matter what time of day it was,--I always had a hard hat, --you
know, -~blue shirit, blue jeans, construction boots,--all that. So
he saw me 1n the neighborhood and he came up and started talking
to me. And he ... he thought I was an iron worker. Because it
curned out he was an iron worker and he'd come back from being out
on the West Coast, working somewhere. And sc, anyway, he wag the

1y
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one who told me about the first job that I went out of town on.

J.  Um-hum,.

E. He told me about a job in Erie, Pennsylvania, at a paper
mill. And he saild there was a shut down, meaning ... meaning that
the plant was just c¢loging down and hiring ... The ... the Union S&p
contractors were hiring travelers, people with Union cards in cther
trades from out of town, and that, if I called the Business Agent
up there, mavbe I could get on.

J.  Um-hum.

E. and so, that's what I did. I called the Busginess agent in
Frie, Pennsyvlvania, and he gaid: You're from where? VYou want to
do what? (laughs) And he said: Well, it's only four tens, meaning
four days for ten hours. And I had been out of work for so leong I
was really desperate to go to work. And I said I really need to go
to work. He szaid ... and I had already checked out the Am Track.
I didn't have a car, but I'd checked out the am Track and I knew I
could get there by 5:30 the next morning.

J. Um=-hum.

E. 2aAnd so he said, Well, when ... Well, <31l me back so I

in a couple of hours. S0 called him back and he said: When
can you be there. And I said 5:30 the next morning. So he said:
All right. You can come. And I was, like, Oh, this is great, --vou
know. I got myvself a job.

J.  Um-hum.
e E. 80 I got ... I went to Penn Station. T took my sleeping
bag, --yvou know, -~my work boots and all that, and I ... the next
morning I was in Erie, Pennsylvania at 5:30. And I went ... I
found the local coffeehouse that was copen twenty ... coffee
diner that was open twenty-four hours, 'cause that's where the

early birds go to have their coffee before they go to work. 2aAnd I
had my flannel shirt on. It was October. And a guy came in and
sat down next to me and I started talking to him and he was going
the same place I was so I got a ride. And then I got there. &And
the firgt fifteen minutes that I was there, T found out ... I found
more out about what was geing on around the country in the
construction business than I had the wheole time I'd been in Local
2. And so I soon discovered that there was, like, this little
network of ... I don't know 1if I'd call it underground, but it

. L]
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wasn't underground. It was just, —-vou know,--when you go to a job
and therse's travelers or boomerzs, as they're called, trades
workers, -—and this even cuts acrogs trade lineg, but in thisz case
it was plumbers and pipe fitters,--mostly pipe fitters. We'xe in
the same International, the Plumbers and the pipe Fitters. They
. When there are people from all over the country who'wve heen
traveling around, they're ... the information that they ... that
they ... you can't get in a book, the information they know about
what'e going on in other places in the country where they've been:
who's hiring ... all this kind of stuff. Plus, our ... the
International gives all the Union officials what's called a roll ~g
call book, which has the ... alltha listings by state and also by P23
Local number, of the names of the Business Agents, the address of
the union hall and the phone numbers, and also when the union
meeting is. S0 anyway, they don't give this to the members. They
kept this in their office and most people don't know about it. But
I was able to get a very old copy of a roll call book, which is
very ratty right now 'cause I've held onto it for such a long time.
But I learned then that I could ... I could get Hobs on my owi.
T =till had to be dispatched out of the Union hall, but I could
make direct contact with the Buginess Agents around the country.

2nd T also learned that ... With this roll call book, I had their
names. This book comes out twice a year, by the way, but ... and
it's only given to Union officials. But it has the namez of the

Business Managers. So I could call up on the phone and say
J. And it's all the Unions?
E. This is for the Plumbers and Pipe Fitters only.
J. 27

E. The iron work-- ... Now, the Iron workers have something
which I believe that we should have, and we don't have. Their ..
Their ... their International magazine, which goes to all the
members and comes out every month, once a year has a directory
izsue and they ... And all the members are entitled to this
infoermation. And we're ... I mean, all the memberg of the United
Association of Plumbers and Pipe Fitters are entitled to this
information alseo, but the International does not make this 9&
information readily available to its members. the Iron workers
Local sends every member who gets the magazine ... the monthly
magazine, the yearly directory issue, which not only 1lists the
names of the business Managers and their ... their office and home
phone numbers, but it also lists all of the wages, --the wages and
the benefits of all the Locals around the country. They also have

T?f&ﬂ
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an 800 number--a hotline number,--which anybody call calli from

anywhere around the country ... And not all the lLocals participate .
in i£t.A Local may be ... have work but may not put itself on the X~
hotline. But vou can call up on a touch tone phone and, like, )

it'll tell vou by state, which Locals have work. So any boomer, --
any Iron worker boomer,--can call up and fin--vou know. If they
want to go to work somewhere, --vou know,--there'll bhe a message on
there saying: In Alabama, we need three comnecters or five rod men
or zix welders for a job that's supposed to lasgt for two months.
Drug test required. Call Business Agent sco-and-so, and here's the
number, before coming. Now, our International has nothing like
that and it's really a shame. But anyway, I went to this four/ten
Job in Erie, Pennsylvania. It turned our to be one eight hour day
and four twelve hour days, 'causge everything always changes in the

construction business. 2and then I went back ... We got laid off
on a Saturday. I hooked up with ... the two people I went to work
with ... I was really surprised. the foreman singled me out first

and he said, when he started handing out the jobs, and said: I hope
yvou don't mind. I have this really eazy jeb. I hope you don't
mind that I'm giving it te vou. and I need two other people. IL's
a three person job. and I thought fo myself, Oh zhoot. And T

wanted ... I was going to do whatever the gquy teld me to do
because I was there to go to work, so I said, Sure. that's no
problem. Whatever you want me to do. And he ... he said, I need

two other guys for this job. who wants to do it? And I'm--you
know, --sitting there for a moment, thinking, ©Oh bhoy! Neobody's i
going to volunteer to work with me. And two guys right away raised
their hands. And, --you know,~-1t turned cut ... The guy said,--you
krnow ... the guy showed us where we were going to go to work and
he said, I don't have the tools and materials for you yet but
and I don't care what yvou do. But when T come back here I want you
right where you are. 8o ... And then I be-- ... As it turned out, \ &
- I became friendly with these two guys, and then T was able to go
get a room and ride back and forth to work with them every day.
Even though I didn't have a car myself, I could travel with them.
they helped me out. and we went back to the Union hall the
following Monday to see the Business Agent again. It was ... I
remembar it really well. We waited all day for the business Agent
to come back. We went from like eight o'clock to three o'clock in
the morning. Three o'clock in the afterncon, the Business Agent
finally came back and he said, Well, who here is a plumbexr? T have
a plumbing job starting down the street and it's supposed to last
six months. S0 I--yvou know,--I was able to get an apartment over
there, and I stayed in Erie for about three and a half months.
And, --you know--that was the beginning of--you know--my experience
finding out about--you know=--being able to work out of town. And
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as I said,--you know--I started ... I started practicing the
calling Business Agents around the country and saying--you know, --
saying--you know,--May I speak toe Mr. So-and-so. by having their
names, I got ... I was usually able to get them on the phone. And
then I'd say: Hi. My name iz Elaine Ward and I'm a UA traveler.

J. Um-hum.

E. TI've just finished up on my job ... my last jokb, and I'm
looking for my next job,--you know. I heard maybe you have some
work. Or if I already knew about a job that they had, I would ask
about a specific job. If they said they didn't have anything, I'd

or if they told me they had a certain number of people on the
bench, which means a certain number of people laid off, I would ...
I would gay: Ok, you must ... Are vyou sending vour guys out
anywhere, meaning--vou know--where have you been sen-- ... where
are you sending them. Or has anvbody been c¢alling your Local. And
what I found out,--what I learned was that I was not ... It was
better if I didn't say I was from New York, and it was better if I
didn't say that I was a Plumber becausge most of the out of town
work for travelers in our organization i1s for pipe fitters. 1In
othar words, it's industrial work. Plumbing work is generally work
that's connected ... Pipe installations that are connected with
systems that are for human consumption or human use,--well, human
use. I mean, the pipe fitters work iz generally work that's piping
systems that are for industrial purpeoses. '

J. Um-hum.

E. zso most of the ... most of the plants around the country:
the car plants, the steel mills, the paper mills, the computer chip
plants, the power houses,--most of those jobs are all jobs where
when they have shut downs or they're doing new construction, they

‘hired pipe fitters, not plumbers. but 1in most cases around the

country, the Locals are combined Locals, so the plumbers and pipe
fitters are part of the same Local. And in many cases, if they
need extra hands, the Business Agents will put people to work even
if they have plumber on their card. I mean, sometimes they told
me, Well, I should ... that I should get my card changed to say
pipe fitter, but it's never stopped me from getting a job.

J. Um=hum.

E. In some cases, they have separate lists for plumbers and
pipe fitters and they don't let the ...--you know,--they don't,--
you know--co-mingle the ... the ... the--you know--let one person
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in ... who has a plumber on his card work in a pipe fitting trade.
But anyway, I started to learn--you know--how to go about the
business of getting ... not only how to but go ... I started to go

about the business of getting myself employed around the country.

and what was really terrific is that, for the first time, T did not
need my officials in Local 2. and not only did I not need them, -
but I had alseo found out that, in most cases, they were useless.‘n\'

the ones from the ...--and I'm not speaking about the ones in
office now,--but the ones who were in office before, just hefore I,
went out of ... the first time I went out of town in 1992, hefore’

I met that iron worker in my neighborhood,

J. Um-hum.
: E. I had been in ... I remember being in the union hall,
Local 2 office, almost on my knees, begging, begging them to send
me seomewhere out of town. And I remember the Financial

Secretary/Treasurer at the time, saying, Well, do you know that the
only place there's work ig in Salt lLake City? And do you know how
rmuch the wage is? and I said, I don't care how much the wage is,--
you know,--send me there. I'll go there. and they still would not
pick up the phone and make the call. I think the truth of the
matter is that ... that, not only could they ... not only would
they not do it, they didn't want to help me. I mean, I've heard
stories about how our Local used to send out guys that they didn't
want around here,

J.  Um-hum.

‘ E. or sending out guys they didn't want to put to work here
to get rid of them. And then they'd send out guys who would give

the Local a bad name. and plus, because of what was going on
there, they did not encourage our ... our people to travel: one,
because we couldn't-recliprocate, =-or maybe they didn‘t want to
reciprocate. but they also did not work on ... Not only did they

not work on establishing rappert with other Locals and other Union
officials around the country, but my own opinion is that they were
really snobby. And because the wages are so much higher here and
their ... and the political corruption that was going on at the
time, and the greed and the selfishness and the self centeredness,
there's no way that ... I mean, thevy don't even have friend
they didn't even have a friendly rapport with the guys in Jersey,
never mind the guys out in the mid-West, in Ohie or ... I mean,
even now, our--you know--our ... in my opinion and my observation,
the Local officials in my Local who arg w.. I believe, we have
some people of integrity in the office riow, they qave a long road
‘ f_.#_ loty ;s _,. o

W o
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to hoe to get the image of our Local and the rapport needed with
other Union officials in eother Locals to a bhetter place. and also,
we don't have work enough even for our own members now, never mind

Most of the Locals prefer to do businesg with the immediate
Locals; the onez that can reciprocate., and New York has not been
able to take in any travelers,--you know--zince the very early
'80s.

J. Weuld vyou say the unemployvment rate is around Ffifty
percent in your Local? Qr

E. Well, if there's six or seven ... If there's zix or seven
hundred on the out of work list and the ... the Local has three
thousand active members. I guess that's how you'd figure the
percentage. Six hundred is what, a fifth of three thousand? So
that's--you know ... What is that, twenty percent? Is that right?

J. Right.

E. Yeah. B2m I doing the figuresz ... I mean, that's just
but, --you know ... and people who are ... people who are working
don't ... nmow don't ... There iz a list now,

J. Um—-hum.

E. and the list started in October of 1%94 by lottery. And
I've only go-- 1994, that's on--October. We're only a few ...
Well, that's two and a half years ago. I've worked once for eleven )QL

eleven weeks since that list was started. T was on the road:
for seven months when that list was made. Saven months, I was
already on the road when the list was made. I remember. T was at
an oil refinery in Lima, Ohio, and I called up in to find out what
my number was. And I'd gotten number 373. So it was not until

CApril, 1996, that the number came up for me to go to work. and I

worked eleven weeks ... So even though there's six or seven
hundred on the work list,

J. Um-hum.

E. some of those people have gone to work. Some of those
people ... if you work more ... longer than two weeks, vou go to
the bottom of the list. I went to the bottom of the ligt. I was
number 602 in June. S0 because I've learned so much about how to
get myself to work, on that Friday I got laild off, the following %(*“
Monday I had a job to go to in Ohio, and T went to work. So once
I learned how to use the system and how te ... how to make myself



JUL-27-2009 09:B2 F.014

friendly with it, I could leze a job ... I could be laild off a job
on a Friday and--you know--who cares how many miles away,--I could
be working the following Meonday, if I wanted to. I was willing to

go

Tape Three

4. OQkay. tape Three, Elaine Ward, after lunch on Saturday,
March 29th. So Elaine, now that we're full as fat pigs and we
can't move, let's try to think about some of the ways that your
crusgading has paid eoff, either for you or for other women in your
Local, and the ways that vyvou'wve connected with other peopls in the
City, in terms of trying to improve conditions on the job, both for
vourgelf and other women or other workersg in Local 2.

E. BAzk me the beginning part of the guestion again? Sorry.

J. Well, how ... how ... In what ways do you think there's
been a pay off, an improvement, --and some ... some SUCCEZSeS, -=SOME
kinds of things that have resulted from vour crusading?

E. Okay. Well, I think the first thing is awareness. I
think ... I think my ... the consciouzness of my Local in general
iz 2 whole lot better towards women, evern though there's =till,
like, hardly any of ug in the Local.

J. Um-~hum. Do you feel that

E. I think ... I think har~-- ... I think the notion of
harassment is taken a lot more seriously than it used to be. And,-.
-you know, —-regardless of the reasons, --whether they're scared for
their pocketbooks or their jobs, or who's the boss, oxr ... I den't
really think that matters so much as the fact that there's more--
YDU"”]{HDW TS There g j‘LlSE" oL Lttsr jT.I'S‘t' h "ta'k'e”l'l'"'"S'EI‘"iOLISlY',“—'—YDLI
know, --because enough ... enough things have happened where people
have made it an issue. And I don't ... I don't think it's ... I
mean, I think,--yvou krow,--TI certainly helped that way. And I
think, in general, all the other women that have--in other walks of
life that have come forward to make 1t an issue. And I think
and of course, I think, sometimes it's been taken ... Sometimes the
intent has been twisted,--you know. In some cases, the media has
perverted it.

Jg. Um=hum.

E. and in some caseg, poli--you know, --womer who may be
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accusing peliticians, for example, and the media making a big deal

out of that, that's kind of perversgion, but ... Anyway, 1it's
become more of an accepted circumstance that women are going to be
in jobs where they have to be considered as ... asg people worthy of
respect and worthy of decent treatment. I know ... I was telling

vyou at lunch that in 1990, I worked on a job in lower Manhattan and
rergisted to get a shanty,--a changing room.

J. At 532 Duane Street.

E. Yeah. And then,--vou know,--in 1993, when I was finally
able to get on the courthouse job, there were already five or six
women working for Lipsky & Rosenthal, which was the contractor that
I'd worked for on Duane Street, and they had a shanty on that job.

J. Um-hum.

E. and then, the company that I was hired by ... to work for,
Breslow, they made a shanty also when I ca--. I mean, I didn't get
. I was told when I got on the job that the shanty was going to
be built, and then they ... I was told to use Lipsky's shanty until
the one that was built was built. And--vou know--after ... T was
on that job a total of ten minutes. I don't remember how long

before they built the shanty, but certainly, I would say, within a
month or twe of the time I was there they finally got the shanty
in. And another ... There were one or two other women that came
there after me, so they got to use that too. S0, --you know, --that
1l suppose ... I mean, you can definitely say that's a
that's a pro--a sign of progress, --you know. 2nd I was telling you
before, there was a .. a .. there was a2 clause in the Collective
Bargaining Agreement about sexual harassment so that--you know--
when I was ... when I filed a grievance in my Local about sexual
haragssment, the only ... there was just one little 1ine in the
CCollective Bargaining Agreement gbout rnot digscrim--tHe confractors
not being allowed to discriminate. 2And now, there is a little
there is something in the Collective Bargaining Agreement, --and I

wish I had brought one with me, but I didn't,--but there's a ... a
paragraph that's more wordy and ... and directs ... and I believe
it addresses the i1z--the term ... It uses the term s=zexual

harassment and addresses the izsue more specifically.

J. Now, how did that get in there? I mean, it had to be
amended. Somebody had to submit it, or how did it happen?

E. Well, T don't know exactly how
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. Um-hum .

E. how the inst-- ... I mean, I was not ... I've not been
involved in any of the contract negotiations, but I know that I
raised the issue enough in my Local so that ... I know that ... I

'  was also teld that the Union officials and maybe the foramen
I think Lola, as a matter of fact ... 8She's not alive any more,
but she used to run NEW.

J. Yeah. Lola Snyder.

E. Yeah. S&She was called to do a workshop for those guys at

J. For the staff at 2?7 Local 2.

E. ©Oh, you know about ... You know about

J, No. But I'm just saying that's who she was doing it for.

E. Oh, veah. Right. Yeah. Yeah. Yeah,.

J. How did that happen?

E. I don't know. {(laughs)

J. Jeaz,. 7?7 Lola.

E. But ... But I believe that's something that may have
come, if not a direct result, certainly as an indirect result of
some of the--

J. Um-hum.

"E. U you kiiow,--somé  of thHe ... thE 1d&uey .. The--gioteé--

"trouble® thet I was causing by railsing that issue through filing
those complalints or grievances.

J. Um-hum.

E. Ne. At that time, I don't remember ever being given
any kind of arena for being able to have any of those issues
addressed. 8o, of course, —-you know--one--guote--grins and bears
whatever situation one is in until the issue becomes so intolerable
that ... that ... You know,--I created an arena for the iszue to
have to be addressed, or forced it to be addressed, by taking it
the legal-~-you know--the legal route, exerciszing my right te file
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a grievance and file complaints, both with the Human Rights and ...

J. How often would yvou say that grievances are filed in Local
2. Is that a common practice, that people file grievances? Are
the forms readily accesgible?

E. Oh, yeah. no. Well, I ... under the new regime things
may bea different and T haven't been around that much to really
know. But

J. but under Pete Salzarulo?

E. Yeah. Well, I told vou bhefore. I guess I told you this

at lunch. I went down to file a gr--. I called up first and he
told me T had to pick w a form. So I got the form and I filled it
cut and breught it down to the Union office. And the

Secretary/Treasurer, Michael Ciletti, came up to the counter and
said in hig usual gruff way, Where'd wyvou get this? (laughs)} BSo

Who gave you this? So I knew that ... that was another way
that T ... I mean, that was another way that I had reinforced what
was in my mind, that--you know--the Union officials did not want
anybody rocking the beoat, filing ... not only rock ... not only ...
not even rocking the boat. It was the point that the Union
officials did not even want anybody exercising their rights under
the Cellective Bargalning Agreement. I mean, that was what was
really pathetic about what was going on. I mean, bukb that was
related more to ... I mean, that was related to the

J. inherent corruption of Local 2.
E. Right. Right. the greed and the

J. Now, what about the ... the other ways in which the

meEmbers gre being short changed; not only dbout-<-vou khow--How Jobs

are assigned and who gets to work, but the whole thing with
henefits. You were mentioning

E. Oh, yeaah.
J. 7?? jobs where benefites weren't being paid?

E. Yeah. Well, in 199%0, I, by--vou know--pressuring an EEQ
officer for Turner Construction, I got the guy to put me on the job
up at Columbia Universgity,--it was the science and engineering
building,--for a contractor called High Tech Mechanical. and at
the time T went on the job, the ... When I .. When I was hired on

F.017%
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the job, the ... at the time, the benefits were not paid. And we
had .. It was October, and let's see,-~the elections were coming
up, and the ... the ... One of the ... I remember, one of the

Business Agents came to the job and--you know--gave everybody this
1lip service that the job was going to be shut down if the benefits
weren't paid. And let's see,--they got ... Right before
Thanksgiving, they got their checks. We used to get wacation
checks twice a yvear, and one time was right around Thanksgiving.
I hadn't worked before that so I ... for this contractor, so 1
didn't have any ...--you know. I wasn't involved in that lack of
benefits being paid. But I remember that when the guys got their
checks, they still had to get an extra check. And them ... I got
hired in Oct--the end of ... October 22nd, I got hired. Ancd whean
T got laid off on February 22nd of 1921, still none of the benefits
had been paid for the time that ... I think it was up to September
of the other cut off date. So the benefits from October through
the time T got laid off, they were not ... they had not been paid.
and I remember asking some gquys on the job,--vou know--talking to
some guys on the job and saying: Hey, lets--vou know,--let's do
this ag ... collectively instead of ... And I remember one guy
said, Oh ... one young guy, he sgaid: Oh, I only care about what's
in my envelope. And another guy said to me: If I'm ... I mean,
this show vou what the ... how terrified their th--how terrified
they were. The ... The guy didn't say to me: I'm afraid if I
speak up I will be laid off or fired, and then I'll be out of work.
and if T'm out of work for such and such an amount of time, I won't 4§?
ey

be able to pay my house payments. He didn't ... He didn't explain
all that to me. He just said ... His first, immediate response
was, when I asked him to go in with me on this, was: If I'm out of
work six menths, I'll lose my house. In other words, he was so

brain washed with the thinking that, 1f he said anything, he was
going to be lald off, he didn't even say that part to me. that was
~already a given. T mean, it blew me away because--you know--these
are grown men, and--vou know--their ... their perception of reality
had been so ... They had been so indoctrinated,--yvou know--by
whoever they'd been around and whatever

J. Um-hum.

E. propaganda they had been ... being exposed to by whoever--
vou know--was in front of them that they were not even willing to
call the Hall;--not even willing to call the Hall, which didn't
aven mean anything was golng to get done. It just means you~-you'}k€
know--raised your hand and said: Excuse me! Excuse me! I think
something isn't okay here. (laughs) So,--you know-it was a pretty
pathetic situation. So I just said to my-- ... 2and I called the

-1

y &



JUL-27-2009 09:B2 F.019

hall a bunch of times and was given a2 run arcund or ... or wasn't
my call wasn't returned, or whatever happened. And I went to

1 remember going to the ... The foreman on the job, at that

time, was the ... the cousin of the President of the Local, and he
sald to me: Honey, you have two choices. You can go to work every
day or you can go down to the hall and tell them you don't want to
work, --when I had said to him about the benefits being paid and ...“xﬁ

A0

or not being paid. And so, I ... I knew that I wasn't going to get
my answer through (laughs) through talking to the foreman who told
me, --you know--I'd better ...--you know,--if T wanted to Xkeep

working, I'd better shut up,--you know--which was part of the
indoctrination that had all these other guys scared, I guess.

J. Um-hum,
E. I guess. I don't know. Anyway, I c¢alled the .. When I
got laid off ... there's a clause in our Collective Bargalning

Agreement that says the delinguent employer has to pay on a
rerminated employee. So I said to myself: That's cool! #£'m going
to be laid off anyway. As soon as that happens,--you know-~I'm
going to force the issue through the ... through my right to
exercige the fact that T'm supposed to have a right in the
Collective Bargaining Agreement to tell them they've got to pay me.
8o ... And I had to go ... The ... the accountant for the
contractor gave me lip service and was not willing to acknowledge,
even when I had the Collective Bargaining Agreement in my hand in
front of of ... and he was in front of me. So the woman at the
Tndustry Board, through a series of phone calls, I finally had to
tell her ... I finally had to--guote--threaten that I was going to
file a grievance and take it as far as I needed to take it to et
satisfaction. I mean, just inmy ... Well, it's like an annulty
fund but they call it Supplementary Emergency Fund.

J.UmShtd.

E. that ... that was one aspect of our benefits. And that
alone, for the four menths I was working there, was almost two
thousand dollars that they owed me. So ... And I was out of work.
and T knew I was going to be out of wo-- I didn't know how long,
but I knew I needed that money, so ... Never mind that they were
supposed to be paying anyway. So, through a serles of--you know--
calle to the woman who ran the Fund office,--the Local 2 Fund
Benefit Fund Office and her cooperation to call the contractor and-
-you know--pass the word on that I meant business, I got my
benefits paid. But the other guys still didn't have their benefits
paid. And so many ... S0 many contractors ... ¥You know, -~thisg is

a ;j‘:-dg'-'_h“‘ :
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part of ... This is kind of ... I mean, it overlaps, but this is
kind of another toplc of the corruption of those

J, um-hum.

E. of those officers. So many ben-- ... So many ... ©One of
the first jo-- ... One of the first things that people who came
into office after these guys left, one of their first big issues
was to collect a whele lot ... trxry te get ... to collect a whole V%*
lot of money. I mean, never mind a whole lot of money was already
lost. But a lot of benefits were blown to the wind because the
the Union officials were not taking ... were not taking care of
business the way they were supposed to. - Yeah.

J. but they were probably getting something for looking the
other way when the benefits weren't paid. So ... Just along those
lines, how do you see the corruptlon issue in Local 2 in terms of
its impact on your average rank and file plumber?

E. 0Oh, it's a terrible thing. I mean, evervbo-- ... Nobody

Nobody .... Everybody got hurt by it. Everybody! Everybody!
And especially the union, and especially the issue of the ... the

the ... The integrity of ... of ... The integrity of the
Union and the integrity of the existence of the union was ... was

is, in my opinion, permanently damaged by what happened. But
everv--everybody--evarybody, --you know, --everybody getzs to leose.
You know,--everybody gets to be out of work for ... A lot of
people ... So many people got to be out of work for a long time.
So much money was wasted. And what's even worse is, in my opinion, .
ig that the City gets to have such a bad ... the Union gets to have
a bad ... such a bad reputation in the eyes of the City.

J. Um-hum.

E. And the City officials get to ... BAgain,--once again, in
conjunction with the help of the media, continue to give people the
impression that a Union is a no good thing,--you know,--because
when they bugt peop--when the ...when the government gets to bust
the unions and they get ... the media projects 1t as stopping
organized crime or--you know--getting rid of organized crime, it's
automatically associated with the union. And then the people who

know nothing about the history of Unions and--you know-- ... all
they hear is--you know--what a rotten thing the Union is. And they
have no idea that people ... that the existence of the Union is

originally what helped everybody have a better working condition in
this country. And the fact that people originally, when they were
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worked with was that he had really good reflexes. And T was
carrying some pipe, and we were walking into this large freight
elevator in the Empire State building and the ... this particular
elevator, --which was unusual in my experience,--dldn't have
anvbody operating it and didn't have ... and if somebody called
for it from another floor the door would automatically come down.
So I was walking across the doorway of the elevator and the duor

came down. And fortunately ... Well, I had a piece of pipe on my

shoulder, and fortunately the ... Well, I had a length of pipe.

Fortunately, the ... my partner was right there, and he Jjumped and

pushed the ... the stop button. 8o just ... the door just barely

gqrazed my shoulder. I was so fortunate,--you know, ~-1I didn't get
gat hurt.

J. Yeah. Yeah.

E. But, ~--you know,--I really was fortunate in my whole
apprenticeship, I mean, partly because I worked with pecople who
were fairly, for the most part ... I mean, there were some
exceptions, but for the most part I worked with people who were
fairly safety conscious. And ... But one thing I d4did learn,
because I did have some experiences with people who weren't safety
conscious or who were ... some men who were--you know ... That was

one of the ways their hostility came out was to--you know, =-in ny ..

presence, to act like they didn't care about safety or my safety,
so I did learn that--you know--safety is really an important thing,
and that--you know--evervbody has to look out for themselves, --you
know. It's kind of like driving an automobile. You put your life
in all the hands of the people around you, so that--you know--as
much as I have to look out for myself, I have to look out for the
people around me because they may not be looking out for me.

I. ... . looking. out for themselves or anvbody else.

E. Yeah, right. Right. But then I had another partner that
I had for almost two vears and T worked very hard for that ... that
guy, too. And,--you know--I thought ... I also ... I thought all
of this was going to get me brownie points,--you know. And I also
went to Mechanics Institute, which I thought was golng to get me
brownie points. I mean, I--you know,—--I learned things so I

J. But yvou want ... you wanted to do it to learn. Right?
E. Yeah. I wanted to do it te learn, but I also thought that

that the byproduct would be that the Union officials and my co-
workers, for the most part, would recognize that I was somebody

F.001
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who'se serious about being in this business and that I deserved to
be treated and acknowledged in that way. And

J. Mechanics Institute iz in Brooklyn?

E. No, it's in Manhattan on 44th Street.

J. Uh-huh.

E. 1It's a school that's been around for a very long time.
You know, one of the wonderful things about it i1s yvou go on your
own time, in the evenings. but

J. That's the one right in midtown,

E. Yeah. Well, it's free.

J. and it's ... Is that where they have that wonderful
library, Mechanics Institute? What experiences 77

E. Yeah, they do have a ... Yeah. they do have a library.
J. Um-hum.

E. It's on 44th Street

J. Fifth and Sixth.

E. between Fifth and Sixth.

J. Okay. That's the one.
.....E. _And they have ... It's free, except you pay for your
books. It's & free school. I mean, it's really amazing. It's ...
And the learning is very good. I went three years at night, in
addition to my apprenticeship and got a ?? Design certificate. And
I learned a lot about ... There's no shop in the school. You

know, --vou don't have any shop work so you don't have any hands on,
but T learned very well about the plumbing code, about design ...--
vou know, --blueprint reading and design situations. Plus, my

the apprentice school, --the apprenticeship school gave some courses
which I attended at night and those also were

J. They were more specialized?

E. There was a blueprint reading course, and I think there
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were a ceouple o©of other courses. But the one I went to was
blueprint reading. That ... I guess to some extent i1t was
encouraged, but 1t seems to me that it was not encouraged enough
for the students,--the apprentices to take additional schooling.
But I found it really helpful.

J. Um-hum. Now, tell me about when you first ... Did
Did you attend union meetings as an apprentice?

E. Yes. They were not They were not required, but I went.

Jg. Um-hum. But you did. 2And what was that like? What was
your experience with the union?

E. Well, I always got the feeling that I was walking into a
bar (laughs) for two reasons. One,

J. Where did they hold their meetings?

E. They used to hold the meetings down on 14th Street in
in the hall over thers where the ... C_ e S Fw/___yuL]

J. Yeah, I can't think of the name either.
E. where .,. The Carpenters have their Union meetings there.
J. Um~hum. Yeah, and the Sheet Metal Workers.

E. I forgot the name of the place, but it's right acrose from
Unieon Square.

J. Yeah, Um-hum,

'E. And the reason I say I always thought I was walking

I mean, I know I wasn't walking into a bar, but I ... T mean, I
say that a little jokingly because, first of all, I always got
stared at because there's so ... I mean, there's three thousand

At this time, there are three ... I'm told by union
officials, there are three thousand active members. Of course,
there were never more than ... usually never ... probably never
more than a thousand people at the meetings, and maybe only five
hundred, or something like that, at a meeting. But there's only--
you know--maybe only a handful or less than a handful, or less rthan
you can count on one hand, women in the Local. 2nd I don't often

Occasionally, I see one or two other women at the Union
meeting but not ... oftentimes not, so--you know ... I wag an

ce
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unfamiliar face and I was female, so--you know--I was stared at for
that reazon. And the other reason I sald it was like walking into
a bhar because a lot of the guys drank before, after and during the
meeting, and a leot of them were .... It's =0 amazing now,-—-I1
mean, -—-you know--since I

J. Marc Ballroom.

E. Yeah, right. Marc Ballroom. And a lot of them would
stand in the back. Arnd I don't know ... Mayhe even the ones
standing in the back being noisy were not the drunk ones, but it
was like social time for a lot of guys, seo they wouldn't
Nething ... My memory is that nothing about any respect or quiet
or consideration for anyone else was ever enforced in the meetings.
And the meetings were pretty chaotic. And gince I've been
traveling arcund the country and had the opportunity to sit in a.
couple other union meetings in locals around the country,--not all
0of the locals 1I've been to but a couple--where vou could hear a pin
drop. I mean, it just ... It qjust ... I remember thinking, at
the time, it used to boggle my mind. The meetings would never get
to new business. I mean, it used to amaze me that even as much
would get done--you know ... I mean, I would walk around the City
and think about all the plumbers--you kmnow ... It's not as much
now, hbut--you know,--the last thirty-five yvears or forty years of
this City's history, the Union,--the Plumbers Union--you know--

built all these buildings, not--vou know ... The iron workers and
the carpenters and the electriclans and the sheet metal workers
too, but T mean, the ... the huge amounts of plumbing, piping. that
are in all these bulldings that were put ... mostly installed when

they were new,--if not now but when they were new,--by these union
plumbers. And some of these guys had been around for a long time.
and I'd go to the meetings and the chacs of the meetings, I would
Just be =2ppalled that--vou know--just . .... It Just would be .an.
enlgma to me {(laughs) almost that the meetings were so chaotic and

J. Did you ever learn anything useful at the meetings?

E, Well, everything I learned was useful in one way or the
other. I ... I got to see that I was part .. a part of something
that was--you know--dominated by a particular mentality that
that showed its ugliest side at the Union meetings,--in a ... in
a group way showed its ugliest side ait the union meetings because
they ware really out of control and they were really .... There
was so much going on that ¥ was not really aware of, which had to
do with the political history,--the internal political histery--of
the organization, and all the personalities and the people ... the

vj_
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men who had affinities with other men and loyvalties to particular
people who had agreements and disagreements with thelr fellow
workers in such a way that ... You know,--this iz how it showed
itself,--vou know,--the ... the cen-- ... The fellows that were in
the position of supposedly being the sentries to, like, contrxol the
meetings did not do anything teo keep the .. the people who were
being a nuisance from doing whatever they did. And the Union
leaders did not ... The ones who were supposed to be leaders did
not seem to be in control of anything that was going on. and
whenever they acted like they did, they did neot ... they did not
make anybody go by any rules. I mean, there's things in the ... in
our Constitution where our members can be fined for un--certain
unruly behavior, and none of that was ever ... or thrown out of the
meeting or ... I mean, none of that was ever enforced. So it
just, --you know--it just really boggled my mind, --you know? And--
vou know, --the way I got to interact with members that I didn't see
on jobs, --which was most of them, 'cause I only worked with a small
few-—- I worked for one ... I worked for one conktractor my whole
apprenticeship, so my exposure to other workers was very limited by
the onesz working for that same company.

J.  Um-hum.

E. So I got to be-—-you know,--introduced to other Union
members at the meeting. And,--you know--I don't remember ... I
mean, I just ... I Just remember that ... You know, I guess if
somebody showed me a video of this union meeting beforehand and
said to me,,--vou know--hefore I ever knew anything that I wasqL
going to get into this trade,--and sald--you know,--doesn't this
look like something you'd want to join (laughs) or be a part of, I
don't think so,--you know? 8So,--vou know. And there was just so
much pettiness--you know? There was just so much petty--. I mean,

J. Now, I just want to ask vou a chicken shit question. Did
you ... Did you ever feel scared going there, or intimidated or
How did vou feel going to the meetings? What was it like?

E. Well

J. Or vou were just amazed?

E. Well,--vou know--I ... I always am aware when I'm ... when
I'm ... when some--you know, --when somebody's pushing a button that

says intimidation on it, or when I'm~-you know--felling unconfident
about myself, or when I had a bad day, or when--you know--a certain

T
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number of people had been unfriendly to me, or somebody who's
important in my life is not nice to me,--you know,--it's easy to
feel--you know----you know--feel fear or--you know--I guess
intimidation is when somebody--you know--has ... I was Jjust
thinking I ought to look up the definition 'cause I really don't
know the definition of intimidation. But in my mind=--you know,--I
say, Well, intimidation is when someone--you know--wants to control

one perszon wants to control another person by ... in a negative
way, by making them feel bad about themselves, or whatever. And I
just--you know ... If I had those feelings,--you know,--I never

let them stop me, --you know.

J. Um-hum.

E. I mean, I'm sure--you know--I'm sure ... You know,--like
I said, I don't walk ... I'm not somebody who drinks, --you Know?
T don't ... It was ... You know,--only on one or two occasions

did T ever even go to a bar with any co-workers, and then I had to
be kind of prodded. But alcohol has never been something that's
been of interest to me. And so, going into a bar ... 8&o when I
gaid, like, walking into a bar, walking into a bar, if T had to

If T had to write down some images of what intimidating kind of
experiences were, walking into a bar has always been that kind of
an experience for me, because I always saw alcohol as something
negative. So ... &And I always ... I've always viewed it ... I
mean, it's ... I mean, of course, women--you know--get involved
with alcohol. But--you know,--in terms of walking into a bar, it's
always men looking at women,--you know? And I always found that--

you know ... kind of checking them out,--you know. Or ... I guess
what I should say is, like, my experience on the job or my ... One
thing I learned about construction ... being in construction

And I remember,--you know--like, when construction workers are
~eating theirx lunch. on the gsidewalk and women are walking by, and--

=1 =1 I CR B e

vou know--they're dressed nicely or they're dressed

Tape Two

J. Tape two, Elaine Ward, Saturday, March 29th. So continue.

E. Okay. 50 if ... I'm just making an analogy here to
women, and before I was in the construction business, being female,
walking by construction workers, and the feeling of ... or not just

the feeling, but knowing that the men were, like, check--checking
out the women that walked by physically and--vou know,--quote,
unguote, --undressing them.
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J. Um-hum.

E. 2and what ... I was using that as an analogy because I was
.. what I want to compare that to was, after I went on the
construction jobs and when I became an apprentice ... I remember,
T used to dressg ... Like, I used to wear really baggy clothes and-
~you know--kind of grungy--not really ... My clothes weren't dirty
but grungy,--you know--work clothes; kind of grungy clothes,
because I was trying to ... I was consciously trying teo play down

anything about my femaleness.
J. Um-hum.

E. And even ... And I found out ... I found out that even if
T did that, I still would get undressed,--you know--visually by the
men, the way they looked at me.

"J.  Um-hum.
E. So I'm relating to walking into a ... when I was relating

to the experience of walking into a union meeting, or walking into
a bhar, or walking down the street, what I found out, or what I

learned, --one of the things I learned was that became ... Instead
of ... What was fearful and intimidating became something
familiar. And becausge ... And when it became familiar, I learned

that T could ignore it, vou see. And I guess if something just
happens to you once, depending on the severity of the impact, it's
not necessarily something that can be ignorxed, or it leaves an
impression. But when I'm going to work every day, just doing my
job, and I come into contact with so many men,--sS0 many men all
the time, day after day ... And ... And the other part of it was
going from job to job,--I began to have ... certain things became
Cdike yard aticke ..

J. Um-hum.

E. 2and certain things were ... And certain things repeated
themselves again and again and again. And as things re-- As my
experience, in terms of being a woman and prob--usually the only
woman on a job site of twenty to thirty to forty te fifty to a
hundred men or more, or whatever, since I traveled many hore,
there was nothing new. I mean, there were the -- They happened in
a different way, but ... and ... and sometimes the verbal stuff was
different, and sometimes--you know,--sometimes--you know,--I ...
sometimes I was, maybe, not in the mood, or whatever, to deal with
whatever was going on, but in general, there were things that

e
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happened repeatedly enough so that I saw them as patterns and
and was able to start learning not to take those things personally.

J. Um-hum.

E. And then I didn't have to put my personal self into it,
and then I didn't have to get ... go to that place where I had to
fael fearful or intimidated.

J. Okay. So when did you en-- ... When did you get to know
some of the other women in the Union? How did that happen? T
assume that you did, over time, get to know some of the women.

E. No.
J. No7
E. I had ...

J. It took a long time?

E. Well, I had contact with a few other women in the Union.
But have I gotten to know them? No. I would =ay no. I ...
Actually, I-=-you know--I1 became ... At the end of my
apprenticeship, I became active with women that were trying to make
changes, and

J. Changes in the Plumbers or changes in construction?

E. Changes in construction, because I became involved with
women in other trades who also experienced similar things that T
experienced, and

J. How did vou ... Who did vou become activé“Witﬁ;“éf ﬂoﬁm"‘
did vou do that?

E. Well, because I went through a lot of experiences that
were unpleasant and secemed to be definitely related to the ¥

hostility towards women being in ... in a trade, and nothing to do
with our ability to do the work.

J. So you were involved with ... Well, I know that I met you
through Association for Union Democracy, the Women's Project.

E. Yeah.
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J. But did vou work with NEW or ... You weren't ... You
weren't part of United Tradeswomen, were you?

E. No. I never was part of United Tradeswomen.
J. New York Tradeswomen?

E. No.

J. No.

E. I mean, I went to some of their events

J. Uh-huh.
. and I went to some of thelr meetings, but I was not ... T
was not ... That was not my ... I mean, I wasn't active in

organizing around that.

J. Uh-huh. That's where I first met vyou, at a reunien
conference for United Tradeswomen,

E. ©Oh, vyveah, vyeah!

J. in a church basement.

E. Yeah, yeah.

J. You had just gotten your card.

E. Yeah. It was such a big deal. I guess=--you know--you
know--the bottom line is how do we survive. I guegs, as time...
You_ know,. as.time went on in my apprenticeship. I wanted to keep i«
educating myself,--you know--not just educating myself in--you
know--by learning the apprenticeship, but also educating myself as
far as--you know--what was supposed to be hap--what my experience
was supposed to be, and what my experience

J. Um-hum.

E. and the things that were .. the things that weren't right
about my experience and if I could do something to change those
things. 2And also, I wanted to be a good union person,--you know, —- ol
and T wanted ... T really wanted to be involved in what the Union
was about. 8o,--you know,--educating myself about the Union, and
aleo educating myself about being female in a2 ... in a trade that-

o
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-or in a profession that was--you know--really not ... not yeL opeh
to women that much. So

J. Did you ever hear of or participate in any of the courses
that Cornell had for women trade unionists, or trade unionists in
general?

E. Yes, I did. But you know something? I don't remember.

I mean, I have .... 1 remember I wanted to go to that summer
program, but I never ... I know I ... I remember, I wrote to the
president of my Local asking to ... if I could be sponsored to go.
£ and I was told no. So ... and at the time, I--you know, --money was

an issue. Money was always an issue. 8o I didn't go. And--you
know, —--at the time, T didn't have credit cards either. I didn't
have much of a bank account in the beginning. I didn't have any
bank account in the beginning, and I didn't ... so, of course, 1
didn't have any credit cards, so I really couldn't do things that
T Aidn't have the money for;

J. Right.

E. that I didn't have actual cash in hand. But I also wanted
) vou mentioned about isolation. T alzo wanted to not be
isolated,

J. Um-hum.

E. So I al--I usually went out of my way, as much as I could,
to participate in anything that involved women in the trades.

J. Um=hum.

LE. . And--yen know,--T.did go. to conferences and workshops,
and--you know,--I was interested in organizing. I was interested
in women tryving to help sach other. and I was interested in
getting to know the women in my Union. and I remamber ... I
remember, when I went to the ... I always went to the Labor Day
Parade, too. We weren't ... We weren't ... A= apprentices, we

weren't reguired to go to union meetings, which I think 1s a
mistake, --we should be required,--but I used to go. And I used to
go because I wanted to know what the union meetings were about
and what ... what went on in the unicon as a whole. And I alze
wanted to know because, when I was a Jjourneyman, I was going to
have a vote, so I needed to be informed about kind of things were
going on that would be voted about.
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J.  Um~hum.

E. and I also wanted to get over whatever fear or
intimidation might be lingering from past experiences that were not
trade related, to walking into this big group of men which I said
was like a bar,--walking inte a bar and having them all stare
I wanted to get over that. So I knew if I did it enough times, I
would get over it, just like going to work every day, you get ...--
vou know,-—-I would ... I would ... I might not like it any better,
but T wouldn't ... I would be able to ignore it after a while, if
they were staring at me or taking my c¢lothes off in their mind, or

whatever they were doing.

J. Um-hum.

E. Anvway, so I did ... I remember I went to one of the
Labor bDay Parades, and I went up to ... I went up to another
tradeswoman, who was Maureern. (Maureen Brown) And she'd been
around longer than I had, and I said, Well, I want to ... you Know-

-I wanted to get together with her sometime and talk about sexual
harassment. And I remember that she zaid to me that--you know-—-
she was--you know--having a good time and--you know--she wasn't
interested, --you know.

J. Um-hum.

E. and I was really disappointed. But I--you know,--the year
before, I remember, I had tried to make friends with her, and I had
gotten ... I have one ... They gave out T-shirts at the Parades,
different T-shirts every year. And one year, the t-shirt was
had a ... was a white t-sghirt with a picture of a wrench on it and
a ... avalve. 2nd it was a really nlce t~shirt. And I remetber,

.T.had_gotten moxre ... I had gotten _two of them. and I had given
her a t-shirt, and--you know--that was like a way of, like, trying
to reach out to make friends. But, -—you know--it didn't happen
that way.

J.  7?

E. No. And I ... as I became active in ... in wanting tc
change things, and I became aware of sgexual harassment and--you
know--I got my ... I finally got my Journeyman's card and I
testified at the hearings. And

J. Now, let me ask you,--Jjust to step back,--when you get the
journeyman's card, is there a ceremony or something, or they just
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send it to you in the mail?

E. No, we had a ... When T graduated, there were gixty in my
graduating class and we had a dinner. They had a

J. Sixteen?

E. Sixty.

J. Sixty.

E. Yeah. We had a dinner. they gave a ... The union put on
a dinner for us up at the ... this place in the Bronx. I forgot .

the name of it, but this place in the Bronx that does big parties
and--you know--weddings and stuff.

J. Not Jimmy's Bronx Cafe?
E. No. I don't remember, It was some kind

J. Okay.

E. But anyway, they had a big dinner and we were allowed to
invite one person. You know,--most of the guys brought their girl ¥~
friends or wives. 2and I asked,--0h boy, why are names 7?7 today, -
Melinda Hernandez (Local 3 IBEW) to come with me.

J. 5he's a carpenter?
E. No. She's an electrician.
J. Qkay.

"E. She's an electrician.
J. Uh-huh.

: E. 2and she gave me a ... I remember, ghe gave me a tool box
as a little gift. Yeah. And she came,--you know,-and I bought new
clothes to go,--you know,--a nice pair of pants and a fancy blouse
and, --you know--and these nice boots. And we had the dinner, and
then--you know--we were ..., they gave us our ... they called out
our names and we came up, and gave ... gave us our certificate.

J. Certificates.



JUL-27-2009 09:B3 F.013

E. Yeah. And there were forty-five pecople that actually

ghowed up. And, of course, I was the only ... I think there warsa
three women that were taken into the apprenticeship program when
I ... when T got my application in 8--. Well, I got my application

in ‘'B85,--when I started the apprenticeship in the spring of '8¢,
But in March of 19--March lst of 1990 was when our dinner wasg,--I
was the only female graduating., And I never saw ... I had only
heard that there were thege other women accepted, and I--yvou know--
did not get to see them or get to find out ... I don't remember
if T got to find out who they were. And I remember, 1like, I think
it was at a couple of Parades, I ... I--either a couple of Parades
or a couple of different union meetings, I had the opportunity to
mest one or two other women who were in that Local,

J. Um-hum.

E. but never in a mamner of--yvou know--having any close
contact. I might have just sidetracked from the question vou asked
me.

J. No, That's ... I was just looking to see what I wanted
to talk to you about, when making the transition from being a
journey--an apprentice to being a Jjourneyman. So what was that
like?

E. Well, ... the good ... the good

J. How did you get your ... Okay.

E. the great part of it was that I was making twenty-six

ninety-one an hour.
J. That's good. =

E. You know, I went from eleven-eighty to twenty-six ninety-
one an hour. And I remember the guy ... one of the ... the guy who
was the ... He wasn't even a foreman, but he was ... he was kind
of a guy who I knew waz on my side, and I used to talk to him, --
you know. He ... He kidded arocund 'causs we used to go te the bank~#
on Thursdays to cash our checks, and he said,--the first time I got
to cash a full journeyman's check, he said .. and we were working
on Sixth Avenue,--so he sald, like, you're ... He said to me
something like: Your smile is all the way from here to Broadway.
You know, I just was ... I had a permanent beam on my face. I
just was ...--you know. You know,--I really thought I had it
made, --you know? that's where I was at. I was ... But om ... on

el
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the other hand, I knew I didn't have it made because the ... the --

T thought, when I was an apprentice, that--you know--after a
certain period of time--you know--they would ali get used to me
being around, and--you know--I would have ...--you know? they
would have gseen that I wanted to work, and--you know--1I did this
axtra education and showed up every day, and was on time and--you
know--worked hard and did whatever they told me to do, and bla,
bla, bla,--a211 that stuff,--and that, eventually, the ... the
harassment and/or hostility would decrease. But my ... Ny
perception of my experience is that it increased. 2nd as I got
closer to ... to qualifying for the kig ... the big bucks, my
interpretation wag that, because I was succeeding, —-you know--I wag
' ,==you know,--then I was due for a bigger--yvou know~--that I was
due for more hostility

J.  Um-hum.

E. because I was succeeding. And everything along the lines
of the--quote--intimidation that ... that T experiencegf’l balieve,
was an attempt to really test my ability to persevere. But their ¥—
intention ... I balieve that a lot of the intention of the guys who
dished it out was to try to discourage the women--you kKnow--

J. Um-hum.

E. and set it up so that they could keep 1t a boy's alub. I
don't ... Tt's not like I think they had a group or they got
together and met and said, let's figure out--you know--how we can
keep thesge women out?

J. Not like the LAPD, that's ?? such a group.

‘ B, - Mo, . I.den't fhink ir ... . T.don't ... T really don't
think it was that organized or ... and I don't think it was that
personal, --you know--against Elaine Ward. I just think that I,
especially after I got my journeyman's card, I ... I ... I decided
that I really was not going to keep my mouth shut any more. And--
you know,--even on the way,--you know--as 1 got close to my
journeyman's card,--you know--I became more and more aware asg I
informed and educated myself more and more, that there were a lot

of things that were going on that were not to be toleratead.

J. Um~-hum . Ndw, let me ask vyou, when vyou became a
journeyman, you had to get your own job, or did you continue to
work for that contractor? Or how did
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E. Well, I worked for that contractor for two months. And
two months after I got the journeyman's card, I was laid off. 2nd
then ... We had in our Collective Bargaining Agreement that a
journeyman could solicit their own work, so ... which meant that,
supposedly, we could get hired straight from the contractor. and
yvears ago, they used te do what they called ghape up. and ... and
vears ago, before ... way before my time, but vears ago, foremen,
I understand that foremen had the .... had the authority to hire.
Mow foremen in my Local, 1in most caszes,--all cases I've
experienced, --do not do the hiring.

J.  Um—hum.

E. Becausge I would go to jobzs and the Businegs Agents were no
longer Union ... the Business Agents that were in office whean T
was an apprentice and when I became a journeyman, you know,--in the
early vears of being a journeyman, are no longer in office,--but
they were very unkind te me, and they were very not helpful. And
they were wvery, to put it guite bluntly, very hostile. So I
and the more persistent I was, the more they made it c¢lear that
they were not going to do too much to help me and that--you know--
it didn't matter what the laws were. It didn't matter if jobs were
supposed to have women on them., It didn't matter--you know--if I
went to Mechanics Institute five times over, even though, I
remember once, standing in the hallway, and one of the Business
Agents wasg telling this voung fellows that they should go to
Mechanics Institute. And here T was. T had a certificate from
there, and the guy wouldn't give me the time of day,--you know?
But ... So I went to jobs... So to keep myself informed about what
jobs were going on--hecause the Business Agents certainly wouldn't
tell me, T would ... and also to see if I could get myself hired,
and to start setting myself up to find out what was reallv going

con, --1 used to go around to jobs with my work ¢lothes. Because

years ago, if the foremen were doing the hiring, the men ... the
men could go To the job dressed for work, and if sgome--they needed
somaebody that day, supposedly they could get hired. WwWell, I never
got hired from doing that, but I did get to find out a lot about

what was going on around the City and who ... what contractors were
doing work, and where the jobs were, and who the superintendents
were, and how long the job ... I used to ... Actually, I learned-

-I believe I learned this process of shape up over at NEW because
they uszed to teach women how to do this, and they uzed to take
women in groups to do this.

J. So where would vou go to do that?
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E. Well, T just went on my own. I mean, I ... I guess lL've
already expressed that I was not easily ... that no matter how
much somebody intimidated me, that did not stop me. And T would
put my work clothes on and go wherever 1 saw a job site,-—-a large
construction job site and in Manhattan. And I would go there
Work ugually started at eight o'clock, so I would go there between
seven and eight. And I also used to have a little ... I always
had a hard hat and work ... and work boots on, because if I had a
hard hat and work boots, then they could not tell me I could not be
on the job site. If vou ... If vou go on & job site and you don't
have a hard hat, ... Even though the .. the people working on the

on the site may not be wearing their hard hats, if vou're an
outsider and vou go on the job site and you're not wearing a hard
hat or work boots, they have a legal right, for safety reasons, to
to escort you off the site. So I would always wear my hard hat

and my work boots, and I would find out ... I'd go on the job and
T'd agk somebody where the plumbers--you know--where the plumbers'
shanty was, or the ... the place where they hung out in the

morning, or where the foreman could be found. and I would go down,
and I would go up to the foreman and--you know--I'd introduce
myself, I'd show my union card and I'd say that T wag locking for
work. And-—vou know,--if I didn't know who the contractor was, I'd
ask who the contractor was and who did the hiring. And I only ever
once heard a foreman gay that he could do the hiring. And I shaped

T shaped so many jobs. but I also kept notes, because--you
know--I'd go to a job and--you know--if it was Jjust in the
beginning stages then mavbe they hadn't even hired the crew yet and

but there was a trailer on the jeobk, I'd say: Well, who's the
contractor, and how long is the job supposed to last, and how many
stories ig going to be up. And if I got to talk to a foreman, I'd
say well ... and it wasn't ... the crew wasn't maxed out yet, I'd
say, well,--vou know--how many are you expecting to hire and--you

Cknow--nax in -the- crawy-and--you  kanew-—hew. leng. do.you .expect Lo .

have them, just ball park. So I knew if it was April and the guy
said, Well, in three months we're going to be hiring--you know--a
total of twenty-five more people, I knew--April, May, June, July,--
in July, or ... or at the end of June, I ought to be going back to
the job site to find out where that's ... what's going on.

J. Um-hum.

E. Or, in most cases ... Well, what happened, and what's bad
about the system that they had, or the way the system was
practiced, was that the foremen would say that ... The foremen
would tell me I'd have to go to the superintendent or the boss, --
the contractor, as far as getting hired. BAnd then, when ... what

A

e
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I would do is either call them or, in most cases, I wrote letters.
Some cases, I would go to the shop and ... and ask about that
particular job that I had just visited, and they would tell me that
I'd have to go to the Union hall. So then I'd go to the Union hall
and I'd go to the Business Agent, and I also would write a letter,-
-in most cases I would write a letter because the Businesz Agents
were really hard to get ... get a held of. A lot of time they
weren't in the office or they didn't keep any regular hours, but

so I would usually write a letter and I would certify, return
receipt it so that I couldn’'t be told that they didn't receive the

letter.
J. Um-hum.
BPut I would write a letter saying I"d ... I'd visited guch and

such a job site. I'd put down the date. I'd give the name of the
foreman I spoke to, the name of the contractor, and that I was
interested in ... that I was avallable and ready for work and that
I wanted to go to work, and--vou know--1f I could ... please
consgider me for the job, and--yvou know--T can be contacted as such
and such a number. I also sent out tonsg and tons and tons of
letters with ... I made a resume,--you know,--because T have a
college education, because I went to Mechanics Institute, because
I did the furrier apprenticeship, and return receipted them all
with the fact that I was available for work. But in ... Ahyway,
what I ... the peint I was trying to make was that the contractors

in a situation where a journevman can solicit their own work,

J. Um-hum.

E. the contracters are not responsible to the Union hall.
And the ... and the Union hall is ... The officers in the Union
~hall  are. .net respongibhle directly fto the members. . I.mean, . it.
doesn't have to be practiced this way, but this was the way the
practice ... this was what happened in practice. The people who
wara ... were golng to be ignored were told by the Union hall to go

to the contractors, and that's what the Business Agents would do.
They would tell me, if I got to then,--yvou Know--got to speak to
them, they'd say, Well, you have te go to the contractor.

J. Right.

E. and then the contractor, of course, had told me to go to

the Business Agent. So they could play thiszs cat ... thiz--you
know--cat and mouse game where I would be sent back and forth. And
in the ... in the meantime, I would never be hired. And I began to

v.‘h q .
Lo
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gee this pattern emerging. and as I ... I also went to EEOD
officers. I targeted jobs that were federally funded jobs because,
at the time--vou know--supposedly, these jobs were supposed to be

These ... & lot of ... There were a lot of jobs in New York
City. There werxe a jot of jobs in New York Clty in the early '90s
that were federally funded jobs, and I learned ... You know, I
went to talk to EEOQ. I went to the general contra-- ... I started
going to general contractors before the jobz were even in the
ground. Some of them were already in the ground. and T'd go to
the EEQ officer and get my name put on the list. I was the very
first one ... Even before the ground broke for that courthouse

job,
J. Um-hum.

E. I had my name on ... I was the very first tradeswoman,
period ... I was the very first tradeswoman ... I was the very
first tradesperson, never mind woman, to have my name on the list, -
-on the EEO officer's list--for that job down at the courthouse,
before that job even broke ground. and I

’;bti'__

J. and how did that work? Did you eventually

E. Well, I was one of the last ... Eventually I got to work
there. but in 19-1992, I didn't weork at all. T worked ... I
graduated March 1st, 1990, and I ... I worked ... I worked two
months, --let's see~~two months ... I worked a total ... In 1880,
I worked a total, including the fime I was 2till an apprentice, I ﬁkf
worked a total of eight months. In 1991, I worked a total of five
monthe. And in 1992 I worked in New York City, not at all. And so
I was ten months unemployved in 1992 and--yvou know--had borrowed an
awful lot of money. At that time, I also ... by then, I also had
credit cards,--veu know? I thought I had arrived,--vou know--if I-.
-you know--had a bank account, and my own apartment, and credit
cards, ——-you know. that was one of my goals when I started out, --
you know--my apprenticeship. I was going to get my Jjourneyman's
card, and I was going to--you know--elevate my financial security
[o--vou know--have ... be able to have credit and a credit card.

J. Um-hum.

E. Anyway, I was ten months unemploved and I had borrowed an
awful lot of money just for paving ... survival, (laughs) just to
pay my rent., I remember, when I graduated from my apprenticeship,
T moved from out in South Ozone Park to Long Island City because it
was ¢loser to Manhattan and I was making more money. Now I'11 give

Loty i
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an analogy, and I increased my rent by almost $250 a month, --you
know, --the amount I had teo pay.

J. Um-hum. Right.

E. So what a lot of guyvs in my class did, they lived at home
during their apprenticeszhip and--you know-- Or even if they didn't
live at home, whatever,--vou know--maybe they had somebody who
helped them out. They graduated from their apprenticeship. They
went to this--you know--high paying rate of pay, and--you know--
maybe they were al--maybe they were already married or just about
to get married, or--you know--they started making a family-~you
know, ~~having kids, and they bought a house.

J. Yeah.

E. Well, I movad into a bigger apartment. I mean, I was
g#till paving rent. I couldn't ...--vou know? T didn't have
anything to buy a house with. but,--you know,--then, in '87,--you
know ... By 1990,--by the time we graduated,--you know--thinking
Oh now, now we're making this big money;--we're going to have this-
-you know--wonderful in--yearly income,--you know--you know--the
unemployment started--you know--ztarted being very serious,--vou

know. In '87, when the stock market crashed, that really--you
know--started this ripple effect. 2nd it wasn't ... It didn't
It didn't really start becoming pronounced te the early ... until

the early.'BOs. by '92, it started to become--I mean, this is in
hindsight; I know this now,--by '92, it started to be common for
people to be out of work for a long time.

J. Um-hum.

E. and it's common for guys to have been out of work for a

year or two, three years,--whatever. But alse in the early '80s, ¢

there was this other situation going on of ... of the laws stating
that the jobs that were federally funded that were supposed to have
women on them, were not ... were not being enforced. These laws

' were not being enforced, and the ... the Union was not enforcing

it, and. the contractors were not enforcing it. 2And the EEO
officers ... It was my experience that the EEO office

officers, in general, were ... were positions that were fairly
lucrative positions that were pald ... that were set up to pay
minority people, --employ some minorities;--they were usually black
men or black women, or Hispanic men or Hispanic women--to sit .. to
gsit in an office with a general contractor and make it leok like
aqual opportunity was happening because they'd take applications

. - Jpj 1l
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and names of ... of ... of women who wanted to get on the jobs.
but the women were not on the jobs. And I got teo know most of the
EEQ officers at that time, and they knew who I was. And,--you
know, -—unfortunately, T was extremely persgistent, and--you know--I
raised a lot of ... I made a lot of waves because I was very ;ﬁu
unhappy about the lack of enforcement and all the money spent on
giving lip service to the practice of egual opportunity and the

the ... the kind of back stabbing that was going on toe the notion
of equal opportunity. You ... You put somebody in a position,
who's a minority person. You pay them to be somewhere every day,
to ... to help ... be part of that process that's supposed to
enforce the law. But meanwhile, you go on all thesge job sites and
there's no women on them, —-vou know?

J. Unn—hum.

'E. 8o it's like using & minority to .. to ... to make sure
the process doesn't happen. And then the mineority ... the person
who's in the position of being the EEQO officer, is--you know--is a
middle person between the ... the contractors and the general
contractor. and that pergon has to, in order to keep their job,
I'm sure, to whatever is told by them to do to keep the status quo.

J. Um-hum.

E. So it's such a ... I mean, it was such a ... It was such
a horrendous situation to me, and it was just ... it was just
really abhorrent to me. And,--you know--I never—--you know, --I
I was ... In 19%2, I was out of work for ten months, and I'd
basically already, by then, knew that my Union hall was not going
to do anything to help me go to work. 2nd so I had really--you
know--between 1990 and 1992, I got to find out that--vyou know--I
really had not too much to lose, because I had my journeyman card
‘now. They couldn 't take that away {rom ms. " - 0 e

J. Um-hum.
E. but they weren't putting me to work. So I could go around ?%4
to jobs and find out where women weren't bheing hired, and write
put all of that in writing. 2and ... and ..
Side Two

J. Okay. Side two, tape two, take one.

E. And I could file ... file a a complaint. And so that's &

e
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organized Unions in the late 1800s and early 1900s, actually died
You know, a lot of people died so that everyvbody could have
better--you know--better working ... better working lives. You
know, all that is lesgt. I mean, it's not that it's lost, but a
a little more of that becomes less important when the media is
reporting about the corruption of the unions. 2and it's a terrible
It's a vicious cycle because--you know--the union ... those
particu--many of ... most of those officials were in the ... were
in office for a very long time. And becau-~- .. And because they
were in ... and when times were good in the early '80s,--you know--
and everybody's making money, even the people who--you know--even
the people are working who don't ... aren't connected to anybody in
the union,--vou know--Union ... There are union members who
who maybe are not in the popular Party ox are not relatives of the
Unien officials or are not part of the sort of central power
structure of the organization, even tho-- ... even ... It's s0
Thing are so ... were so husy that even those people were working.
8o, on the one hand, --yvou know--evervbody's making money, --you
know, --and nobo-— ... and it's a lot easier for people to kind of
look the other way, when they see things happening that ge against
the Collective Bargaining Agreement because evervbody's working.
I mean, that's the ...--you know,-~that's kind of the bottom line.
But then, --you know--as things progress and you have, like, what
happened in our history in ‘87, when the stock market fell out or
the stock market crashed and--you know--the bottom started falling
out and ... and Jjobs starting beconing less and less available and
people started becoming laid off ... And these Union officizls had
baan in office for =0 long and people think ... the members have
been ... a lot of them have been indoctrinated with the idea that
these ¢guys are their friends and they're going to take care of
them. and meanwhile,~--you know--there's so much greed and .
dishonesty that's been--you know--kind of perpetuating--you know-- ‘
the activity. And all of a sudden,--you know--lots of people
aren't working. T mean, it seems as 1f it's all of a sudden. But
little by little, as ... as the Collective Bargaining Agreement has
not been enforced, --you know--the conditions start to slide, and--
you know--contractors are allowed to do things that are against the
Bargalning Agreement and people turn ... people go along with the
idea of turning their head the other way. And then, all of a
sudden, a lot of people are out of work and they're looking around,
and they're saying, Well, --you know--what's going on here?

J. Um-hum.

E. and now they're upset. And even the people who--guote--
have Jooks are not working. And they're .... And at this point,
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they're becoming too =zcared to open their mouths. And in the
meantime, the contracters have been allowed to not follow the
Collective Bargaining Agreement. So vou have a situation where--
you know--kind of the whole purpose of the union has sort of fallen
apart. And people are too ... at this point, people are scared.
And even if they will open their mouth, they won't get any
satisfaction because there's been an agreement between the
officialeg and the contractors that we don't have to play by the
rules any more. we'll make up our own rules and do whatever we
want . And, --vou know--I just think that this hag bheen a horrible,
horrible, horrible thing. It's not something that you can

T mean, if things are to get ... When things ... You know,--if
things are to get better, it's going to take a long time because T
don't really think that all of this happened all of a sudden,--you
know? 1It's just that people become aware of it,--you know--in a
moment of their need (laughs) and start crying about it in a moment
of their need. But by then, it's too late because so much has been
lost. And there's so much unemplovment now, and there's such ;&ong
road to hoe, I don't ... Well, I'm ... I'm sounding really
negative, but I don't ... I don't ... I ... I foresee it ag a
really long haul, --you know, --to

J. Are you planning to attend the Unien meeting this week,
E. Yeah.

J. when they're going to talk about possible merger of vyour
Local and ?? Everybody's going to come into one pot, I guesg;--
everybody inte Local 77 information.

E. and Local 1 has no ... Local 1 hag no hiring system in
their Collective Bargaining Agreement. Local 1 has the same dezl.
You can sclicit your own work, which means the contractors can
‘say, --you Kknow--go to thé Union hall, and the union hall can say,
Go to the contractors, and (laughs)

F. give evervbody a real run around.

E. Yeah.

J. 8o you'll have to report for us on the reaction of the
membership to the news that you're going to be one big, happy
family.

E. Well, ye=ah, maybe. Yeah.

\ 5
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J. Yeah. &o I'm wondering, im ... in your ... from all that
you've geen and experienced, if you have some observations abkout
recommendationg or things that you'd like to paston to other women
coming behind vou,--words of advice?

E. (pause) Well, I guess the most important thing is to
pelieve in yourself and--you know--find the pecple who will Dbe
friendly to you and help you learn, and help you get where you want
to go, and hang around those people and ... or be with those
people, or seek those people out. and to be informed, --you know;--
ro be educated and informed. that's really important. Aad to know
what your rights are. 2nd ... I don't know. What ... what
what else did veou have in mind?

J. wWell, as you've traveled around the country, have you
vou know, --we always hear about these tradeswomen's groups in
different parts of the country. Have you connected with any of
them over time? T mean, you've .. you've attended different
conferences and things.

E. Yeah.
J. So what kind of experience has that been,

E. Well,
J. both as a ... Early on vou attended those. But

®. <veah, I used to do a lot of that because it was really
supportive in the sense that it gave me a larger picture of--you
know--kind of a world outside of myself where the ... But the
world outside of myself was made of other women who had experienced
gimilar things.

J. Um-hum.

E. and also were in their own little scenario of kind of
being isolated. So in kind of a backwards way, it helped me know
that I wasn't alone,

J. uhk-huh.
. which kind of gave me some images to uphold in my mind, --

even if it wag in my mind's eve,--when I was going on my day to day
business to ... to know, I guess, that it was ... that I could get

through it or--you know--

,,,,,,
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J. um-hum.

E. that it wasn't ...--you know--that ... that I could
that I could meet the challenge of 1it. But I wouldn't ... I
guess, ~-you know--it would be better if T could say, --you know,--
yeah, life is wonderful--you know. All these support groups are
terrific. And,--you know--they're good for what they are, which is
support,--you know. But really, ... as far as--you know--making
things okay on the job,--you knew--or making contractors and unions
be more receptive to women, I don't think that that's anything that

I think that's only going to come from women being willing to
go on the job and stay on the job, and do their Jjob, and speak up
for their rights and--you know--put up with the--you know--backlash
and--you know--stick with it, and--you know--prove--you know--
prove, time and time again, that they can do the job and they're
capable and that they're decent human beings and that they have a
right to earn their liwvelihood. I think that's ... And,--you
know, -~there's not any ... I mean, we live in a soclety that wants
everything instant,--you know, --the--you know, —-from the fast food
£o the button you push for the TV or the movie or the telephone or

J.  Um-hum.

E. But--vou know--that's not the way the human being changes.
Or that's not the way human beings become receptive. And I don't
foresee,--T don't really foresee the--you know--the kind of
chauvinistic thing--you know--going through a mass, overnight
change. ‘

J. Um=hum.
E. I don't see that happening, --you know.
J. When you travel outside the City, how would you compare

vour experiences here to your experiences elsewhere, in terms of
being received as a woman, a union member: given respect

E. T would say overall it's better, but it's not great.
Union ... My experience in general with the Union officials was
much better. I--you know,--I had ... You know,-I've had some
experiences where I walk ... You know,--one time T was ... I went
into a Union hall in Kansas, and the guy sent me ... Even though
he saw Plumber on my Union card, and he sent me ... I was in, T

believe it was Topeka, Ransas, and I was in the union Hall. and it
was summertime and I had shorts on and a t-shirt. and T hadn't
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heen working for a week ...--vou know--for a couple of weeks, or
whatever. And,--vou know,-shorts, t-shirt, sandals and--you Know--
I had my nails painted. So I go in there and--you know--the guy

and I pull out my Plumbers Unien card. And the guy looks me
over and--you know,--tells me to go see somebody else by ... He
gave me a guy's name by name. And I was new in the traveling
buginess;--the business of traveling. And I went back out in my car
and looked in my roll call book, and I saw that the guy he'd sent
me to was a pipe fitter, not a plumber. but he knew T had plumber
on my card. So I went to the ... He sent me to this pipe fitter.
€o I went to the pipe fitter in Kansas City, and the pipe fitters
and plumbers were in the same building but they had =zeparate

offices. and the pipe fitter said to me: Well,--you know--the
plumbers down the hall. Why don't you go see him? And I said,
Well, T ... I'm going to. But the guy from the plumbers and Pipe

Fitter's hall in Topeka, --which was one Local and not separate--
said, --vou know, --come over and see him. and then,--you know,--he
really kind of wasn't that interested. But then T started telling
him how I'd already been in a paper mill and an oil refinery and

J. Um-hum.

E. and then his eyes opened a little and--you know,--he said:
Well, we have a job ... a job in a car plant coming up in & couple
of weeks. And go see the Plumber down the hall. So I went to see
the plumber down the hall, and the plumber told me that that guy
from Topeka had been calling all over the place for plumbers. So
T knew that the guy sent me to the pipe fitter because the guy was
thinking if he sent me to the pipe fitter, the pipe fitter would
turn me down and I wouldn't find out that he needed plumbers,
because he really didn't want me.

"J. So did you go back?

E. No. I didn't bother with him. I think I sent him a postcard
from wherever I went to work next, which wasg in St. Louis. but
then I wag in ... in I believe it was Lawrence, Kansas, and I

the guy ... I spent almost the whole day with a gquy. And he took
me to lunch with another carpenter guy,--vou know. In his office,
ne was putting me on the phone with wall these other Business
Agents from other states and--you know--making it look like he was
trving to help me. And ...But,--you know--there was ...you know, - -
averything was, No, not now or down the road, or whatever, and
another--vou know--five hundred miles, or whatever. And a guy came
in the Union Hall, who was a member of that Local in Lawrence, and
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he had jugt come back from 5t. Louis. And this other Union member
said, off the cuff: well, why don't vou call the BA in 3t. Louis?
But the Business Agent in Lawrence never picked up the phone tCo
calt the guy in St. Louis. when I got back to the motel, I called
the guy in St. Louls and he said, yeah,--you know. Come on over.
Somy ... my job ... So I went te ... I started ... I went to
work in St. Louis. PBut T had another experience where I went out
to Oregon, and I went to the plumbers and Pipe Fitters Hall out

there. and they have a ... they have a digpatcher, who's not even
a Business Agent, who takes care of giving out the Jobs. My ... My
experience was usually that with the Business Agent who ... or
Business Manager that dispatched the members to the Jjobs ... In
thig case this Union ... Oregon has one Union ... one Plumbers and
Pipe Fitter's Local for the whole state. Yeah. And this
dispatcher .. And this time, I walked in, I didn't have my nails
painted. I had my car hearts om. I had my ... usually I go into

the Union hall looking Tike I'm ready for work with my

J. What are car hearts?

E. The Carhart is a ... actually a brand name of a company
that makes a lot of work clothes. And they make a jacket that a
lot eof guys wear. and anyway, 1it's a well known company among
construction workers, and there's variations on it. But ... =0

Carhgart has also become a generic term for work ... work clethes,

J. Yeah.
E. Jjust like

Side Two
J. ... purposes of
E. Oh, that was just a joke. Yeah. Yeah. Is this working?

J. Yeah. So if you go on the job with that shirt and vou
wear 1t on the job?

E. Oh, it doesn't matter what I wear on the job, I mean, to

me, not any more. I mean ... I was just golng to say when

I'11l just f£inish the ... what I was saying before about ... I went
out to Oregon and ... In New York City the journeymen do not have
to have a New York State Journeyman's license. you just have to
finish vyour apprenticeship. But in a lot of states, in the
plumbing industry, it's ... the state gets ... the way the state
can control who gets to be a plumber there and ... is by requiring

i,
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the apprentices to have a state llcense,--a journeyman's license.

J. Um-hum.

E. And so, anyway, I went to Oregon. I was in this Union
hall and, as I said, I was dressed to look like I was going for
work. And the guy hands me the papers and I think, Oh great! I'm
going to go to work. Aand then he asked me for my travel card. And
then he tells me, well, it's going to be two to three weeks. Well,
I needed a pay check right then and there. I didn't have two to
three weeks fo wait. So I said, Give me back my travel card
because I need to go to work right away. And,--you know,--then he
also threw the papers ... He wanted to know if I had a plumbing
license. And I didn't so .. 2and then I asked him about ... he
gave ... So then he gave me the papers to take the .. the test.
and then I asked him about pipe fitting work' cause I'd been on
quite a few industrial jobe already. this was ... The first time
T went to Oregon was February of '95. And then he read me the
he sort of read me the riot act about why plumbers ... about the
rea- According to him, the reason plumbers were losing their
losing their work was because they were doing pipe fitting jobs.
And, —-you know, --he went on and on and gave me this big lecture.
So T really got it that this guy wasn't too happy about me being in
the hall wanting to go to work.

J. Um-hum.

E. 80 .. so,--you know--I wasn't going to go to work there.

And I remember, I went back and I got a copy of the recent ... out
there they use ... they go by the uniform ... the uniform plumbing
code. There's some different codes. New York City has its own
code. Anmyway, I went back to buy the latest copy of the code book.
~and then I asked the guy if I could use the phone and he didn't

want to let me use the phons. and,--I mean,--it just was (laughs)

Tt was like--you know ... It was ... It was a ... It was really

a challenge for them. They don't like ... They really gave me the

impression that they did not want anybody ... any outsiders there.
J. Um-hum.

E. And being that my card was from New York and I was on the
other side of the country, I was definitely an outsider. As a
matter of fact, they have A, B, C, D, and £ list out there, and
this 1s for travelers also. A list is people who are from their
Local, from 290;--that's the number of the Local. 3B list is, T
believe, what they call ... They have something they call a
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Distriect Council, which may be a couple ¢of Locals in the northwest.
As I said, Oregon has only one Local so it might have been
washington, ——you know——-and a couple of the surrounding states. And

then the ¢ list was for ... was a broader category,--geographical
category in ... in the western area. 2And then I believe the D list
included everybody up to the, like, the west side of the
Mizsissippi.

J. Um-hum.

E. 2and then, the E list was guess what?--all us on the east
gide of the Missiseippili o ... As a matter of fact, in '90, a year
later,~- Well, in between then and a year later, I went ... I
worked ... For example, I worked in Texas. 2And when I was in
Tewag, I was sent out as a pipe fitter, but I also took the ... the
Journeyman license test for plumbers there and passed it and--you
know--have =since got it renewed. You have to take continuing
education, and vou can do it through the mail. and you have to pay
them a hundred bucks. and then vou have to get your license
renewed. And ... And I alsc took the ... When I worked in Idaho,
I worked in a computer chip plant there also, but I took the test
thare for a journeyman's license. and then I was able, through
reciprocity ... In other words, if you have an Idaho license
Bacause you have an Idaho license, you can get an Oregon license by
paying a bunch of money and not taking ... not having t to take the
test. So in ... a year later, '96, I went back teo the Union hall
in Oregon. And now I have an Oregon State license sgo T can do
plumbing in Oregon,--I can go out on that plumber’s list. and
they're busgy there. but you have to go to the hall between three
and five in the afternoon, and vou have to sit thers and wait until
they ... he goes through all these lists to get your name on the
list.

J. To the § list.

E. right, right, right. and then he'll come out and say,
Nothing teday. Ceome back tomorrow. And vou go there betwesen three
and five p.m. and that definitely means you're not going out that
day, anyway. I mean, most halls you can go there at six o'clock in

the morning, seven o'clock in the morning, and go to work that day,
if there's work for wyou, But anyway, so when I went up to the

counter, the guy didn't ... didn't even ask me 1f I had a plumbing
licenge; --didn't avan care about it,--you know? And twoe ... for
two weaks, -you know ... There's supposed to be plenty of work

there. But for two weeks, I went to the hall and there wasn't any
work . Finally, I said to the guy: Well, can I call you instead of
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having to be in the hall every day? And I happened to be traveling
with my partner.

J. Um-hum.

E. and he knew there was this job in a paper mill out on the
west coast and so we went out there and staved in a motel there,
because sometimes ... sometimes it's smart to go and stay in a
place that's near a job, because then, the Business Agent might
say: Oh, where are vou staying. And you tell them. And then they
say, Well, I'll send you to that job.

J. Yeah.

E. But most of the times, it's like ... Well, it's always
like they're the boss. And most of the times, it's--you know--you
can't ... it doesn't always happen that yvou can say, Well, I'd like
to go to that job, and--vou know ... And they were building a
federal courthouse in downtown Portland . and of course,-you kﬂOW;fffh
~the guy would not send me there. I think ... I think John Fine =
went there. Somebody from Local 2 I talked to got to work there v,
for quite a long time. but anyway, I went out ... we went out and
took a motel near that job in Teledo, on the west coast of Oregon,
and that was when the ... the they were having those floods out
there. the Columbia River wasz flooding. and it rains all the time
there anyway. but this was four days of solid, solid rain.
anyway, I called up the guy Monday, Nothing. Call him Dback
tuesday. Tuesday he says,--you know, -Oh, vou're staying out there?
Why don't you do me a favor and go to that job. So then, of
course, I get To the job and--you know I got there in the afternoon
and the guy at the job said, Oh, we thought you were coming
vesterday,--you know? So there was obviously--you kunow--a game
going on there, too, about--vou know--me going to work. And--you

“know--it was mot surprising. But anyway, the bottom ... What I was
telling vou about the floods was that--you know, --everything's
different everywhere you go. And out there, you buy vour own
raincoat, and jin the rain, you work. and in the four days of
pouring rain, they worked and it was ... not ... not ... not my
firat choice. ‘

J. 2?7
E. No, not at all.

J. Have you encountered any other women traveling in your
travels?

e



JUL-27-2009 09:54 F.010

E. Yeah, once or twice, but very rarely.

J. Um-hum. what trades?

E. My trade,

J. Yeah.

E. pipe fitting.

J. uh-huh.

E. they were either pipe fitters or welders.

I Um-hum. and have you learned a lot ... You've learned a
lot from being on the road, aside from

F. Yeah, absolutely.
J. ‘'cause you were bagically learning a new trads.

5. Yeah, because T went to a lot of pipe fitting jobs. And,-
-you know--a lot of times I'd go on the job and ... In New York
city, all I did was plumbing.

J., Um-hum.

. and in pipe fitting, there's different materials. Some of
them are the same, but there's a lot of different materials and
gome different ... and different things ... different ways of
putting pipe together that are not ... not used in plumbing.

®. and so, I had to go a lot ... I had to be willing, a lot,
to not only go .. not only go to & Union hall and stand in front of
Union officials that I'd never met before or never seen before, but
mlso T had to be willing to go onto job sites with

J. ?7

®. Yeah, being the only female, in most cases,. and a lot of
these jobs were much bigger than any job sites I'd ever been on in
New York City, not in terms of the ... the height of the building
or the size of the building peyégy'.. A lot of times thase jobs

were big because they were spread out, but the amount of

fﬂﬁl
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construction workers on a job was a lot bigger.
J. Um-hum.

E. And--you know,-and I had to be willing to go among a lot
of ... a lot of guys that I'd never met before, and guys from all
over the country, and guyves with a lot more experience than I had.
and also, I had to be willing to deal with the fact that, in a lot
of cases,==-you Kknow--1t might be my first exposure. Like, the
first time I was in an o0il refinery area, or the first time T was
in a steel mill, or the first time I was in paper mill. and then
after--vou know--after the first time, it's not my first time any

more.

J. Yeah.

E. so then again, just like--you know--when I was saying
before about ... a certain familiarity comes with walking among men

and getting used to them--you know--kind of looking me up and down,
J. Um-hum.

E. or just staring, I ... I just got in the habit of giving
everybody the benefit of the doubt. I mean, they ---they
giving them the benefit of the doubt until proven otherwise, in
terms of--vou know--if T could interact with them or if I should
bother o interact with them. but, --you know--if some guy's
staring at me, I ... I'd look at him back and say, Hi; how are vou
doing?--or whatever, —-vou know?

J. Yeah.

E. but then, --you know--if they're going to act--you know--
really hostile to me, then--you know--I'1l do my best to ignore
them. And if they're somebody I have to work with, then T deal
with it the best I can. And--you know--if I ... if I'm traveling
and the ...--you know--I can't mediate matters individually, then
I go to the foreman or the steward, if there isg a steward.

J. Um-hum.

E. that wags angther difference. A lot of places in the
country I went, there wag no shop steward. and a lot of places I
went ... I mean, first, at first, like, T got used to being
given my referral and being sent to the shop steward off the
foreman. But what happened a lot of times, depending ... If I was



JUL-27-2009 09:54 F.01Z2

in a place where Unlon conditions were pretty bad, then a lot of
times the ... the referral would send me straight to the
superintendent, ~-you know. But if I couldn't mediate the situation

or get satisfactieon through the foremen, or the ... of if there was

no shop steward, through the superintendent, and ... and I couldn't
find any way to work it out myself, then I counld leave the job,--

vou know? And that,--you know, --that ... that also was another

That's a plus about traveling, because as a travel-- ... First of
all, as ... I think one of the reasons I was tre--that I x/
experienced good treatment as ... because, as a traveler, I'm going }\
to a place that's busy. 2And when I'm in a place that's busy,--you
know, --pecple aren't ... aren't as threatened by somebody else,
because they have ... they have thelr job,--you know. So¢ I'm not
taking something from somebody slse, because I'm there becauze they
have ... there's a nead for more than they have,.

J. Right.

E. and the other part of that is that I'm alsoc a transient.
I'm not a member of their Local. I'm not in .. on & daily con--in
any kind of ... I'm not zeen as a threat because they know I'm not
going to be there for very long,--yvou know? 8o And ... and
the flip side of that is, if I don't like being there, I can leave. Mo
And since I am a traveler, I don't ... I'm ... I'm not involved SR
with politics. I don't have to get involved in the politics,--you
know? I don't have to ... I don't have the same concerns that the
people have who are there every day, who ...--you Eknow,--the
personalities and the who's in power, and who gets along with who,

J. Um-hum. VYeah.

E. and who's related to who. You know, none of that has to
be any of my concern. So from that point of wview, I got treated
" better., It was also my experience that people in the mid-west,
'cause I worked quite a ... I worked in Ohio. I worked in
Tllineis. T worked in Missourl. I worked in Texas. I worked in
Minnesota and Colorado and Towa. I work—— ... I worked in
Pennsylvania. I worked in Georgia and Virginia and Idaho. 3But the j%
mid-west in particular, what I want to say is, in places where the
history of the state ... It has a lot to do with people originally
being farmersz. The ... the people themselves are much more
connected to evervbedy working, to, like, women working. Like,--
yvou know~-on farms, men and women work,--you know,--and there's
something about that mentality that iz kind of much more inbred.
So that when a woman comes on the -djob, it isn't like, Oh vyeah?
What's she doing? It's like, Oh, there's a woman who's working in
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this trade. I mean, I'm not saying that that's what they're saying
in their mind. And I did encounter--you know--some forms of--vou

know--some .. I mean,--you know~--some forms of chauvinism in
different ways, but not go much as in New York City. In New York
City it's because ... BAnd the other thing is that the wages

' the wages aren't as high, --you know--in other places, and they worlk
much harder for what ... for what money they get. But the wages
aren't as high, And I think in New York City, some of the

chauvinism has specifically to do with the fact that there still is .
this really, really conservative, old fashioned notion that women
are supposed to be home. and there's thig really ... Or that the
men are ... are only seen as being good men if they are the
provider, --you know? And that's where the buck sto--begins and
ends. And, of course, it's a power thing, too. But--vyou know,--in
New York City my experience on the job was that the wages are so
high that--you know--that's a threat--vou know? Tt's like, —-vou

know--women aren't supposed to be making that kind of money,——youﬂf/

know. So ... I don't remember if ... I might have gotten’
distracted from your original question.

J. No, we're going to .., S0 ... 80 you ... vou feel, at
this stage, after being in the trade for as long as vou've been,
you have a feeling of confidence in vour own skilis, both
interpersonal and survival, and in terms of knowing what vyou're

doing.
E. Um-hum.
J. If you don't know how to do it, vou'll learn.
E. Absclutely. And there's a lot I don't know, but that

doesn't matter. I mean,--you know, -~-there's alwavs a way to find
cut what you need to know.

J. Um-hum.
E. and I--you know,--TI learned ... I learned that a lot on
the road. I mean, well, I learned that ... Actually, I learnad

that through my apprenticeship. In my apprenticeship, I learned
that 1f there's a will, there's a way.

J.  Um-hum.
E. And I learned that partially by--you know--my
determination to ... to achieve my goal, which was to get my

journeyman's card, which I did. And I alszo learned that by
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You know,--I was ... I ... You know, —-aside from the ... I mean,-
-you know,--in my mind, I have to separate ... I have to lock at
the chauvinism and .. and the ... the learning of the sgkill as two
different things ... The experience of the ... the hostility and

the men being chauvinistic as one part. And then, the other part
is that some of them, even though they might have continued to view
me as a sex object or primarily thought of me as gomebody who
shouldn't be there, some of them did teach me some things about
using the tools. Seo there was thalt aspact of 1it. Dbut really, my
my ability to perceive myself as somebody who's able and
gkilled, and able and skilled enough to learn more, didn't happen
until T was on the road. And I think that, when I went on the
road, I was really able to be seen as my OWI Derson, —-you know, -
and I was being able to see ... being When you're ... When you're
& traveler, it's not ... I mean, there's so many guys who've
traveled, and so many Union officials around the country who'vé
when they weren't, before they were Union officials, they had to

travel. There's some Locals that ... They c¢all them suitcase
Locals. They're only ... There is no work in their area, and the
Local exists primarily to ... to send the guys around the country.

and those Union offiecials have a lot of knowledge about what's
going on in other parts of the country And a lot of rapport with
other Business agents. And there's a lot of ... There's a lot of
Locals where it's commen that, --you know, --maybe six months a year

six months of the year there might be some work, and then the
rest of the year there's no work.

J.  Um-hum.

E. So it's a given that these guys are going to be going
somewhere alge, --you know.

E. and it's a given to them--themselves that they're going to

be on the road. Or it's a given that they're going to do what they
need to do to take care of their families. and part of that means

traveling. 2o when T went teo these other places as a traveler,
there's a certain ... No matter ... Whether you'refale or female,
there's ... there's a understanding that there's a desgire to make

earn ones’' living when one is traveling.
J. Um-hum. Um-hum.

F. and it's not easy. And everybody has to help each other.

L
-
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J. Um-hum.

E. and that's what I did net get here, when I was in New

vork,

J. Um-hum.

E. that ... One of the deal ... One of the ... One of the
most important parts of the union is to ... for people to help =ach
other. And that is really a shame because--you know,--that's
that is the biggest .. That's really the--you know. All the greed
and the corruption and everything else aside, that's the biggest
downfall of the Union, that's it's not ... that what's being passed

along is not that we are here to help sach other. aAnd ...
J. Um-hum.

E. but anyway, when I traveled, I got to ... Even though I
had to--to some extent, I had to prove myself, when ... a lot of
thegse really big jobs that I've been on,=--you know--you're just
another number. 2nd sometimes, it doesn't ... Semetimes, the
contractor's getting paid for having a certain amount of bodies
therea. And the

J.  Um-hum.

E. and I'm sure you have to do something. But the pace ig so
different and the ... the things don't--you khow--things get done
according to a certain order and a certain procedure on the job.
and the guy will come and tell vou ... I mean, the first day I
learned that the foreman came and said--I've said this already,--
the foreman came and said, I don't have the ... the material for
you right now and T don't know when it's going to be here. But I

just want yvou hereée when I come back here, 7 7 0 T

J. Um-hum. Right.

E. so I don't have to run around looking for wyvou. And that
was the first thing--you know .... one of the first really
important things that I learned that--you know--I'm on this job.
I'm going to get paid for being here for a certain amount of time.
the time is temporary. and my job is to show up and be there. and
when the guy tells me to do something, that's when I do something.
Otherwise, I'm just there,--vou know--

J. Um-hum.
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E. and I've got to look out for myself not to get hurt, and--
you know--look out for the people around me. but a lot of the big
Jobs I wag on was like that. and it wasn't so much a matter of--
yvou know--how much I ... It's not about individual egos. It's not
about~-you know ... I mean, certainly, their--you know--the jobs
are comprised of a lot of people who know how to do things. and
there were a lot of people with more gkill than T was. But there
were also a lot of people who were willing to share what they knew.

J. TUm-hum.

E. and one of the things that I ... I learned was that--you
know--you've got to really know how to go with the f£low and put
your time in. It's kind of like, you go to these jobs and vou put
vour time in.

J. Um-hum.

E. and if yoﬁ can handle being there for ten hours a day, six
or seven days a week, or twelve hours a day, gix or seven days a j%;
week for--you know--three weeks or a month, or however long it is,
or howsaver long yvou can stand i1t, then--you know--with the time and
a half after the stralight time, vou .. vou come out with some
money .

J. Um-tum.

E. but you've got to gpend sixty or meventy hours a week, --
“you know--in pla--and oftentimes, in places that have terriblebé—
environments and ... and--you know--you may be worr-- . _you may
actually be going something with the teolz and material half of the
time, even though vou're going to get paid for the whole time being
thera. '

J. Um-hum.

E. and--vou know,--that's kind of the way it goes. And
there'll bhe--you know ... As I said, a lot of people who were
willing to ... you know,--I learned that if I had an attitude
showing that I was willing to learn, that the majority of people
were going to help me. And there were only a few people who--you
know--I would need to walk away from, and in a couple of case,
where I would guit a job--you know--because

J. um-hum.

(T
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E. because of what happened.

J. So, well, any other comments or ... Happy with your life
choice? Too difficult?

E. What do vou mean? {laughs) What do you mean?
J. Woman as plumber.
E. Oh God!

J. Do you have any ... any ideas about, like, okay. vyou ware
on this job for ¥ amount of time, and something that you'd like to
do that you haven't done yet, in terms of changing your lifestyle
or vour ...--vou know,--what ... what vou're actually doing? and
do yvou have any ... any dreamg about something that you'd like to
do, sort of yvour next stage of life? or you haven't thought about
that?

E. Yeah. I have thought abouif it.

J. but not ... You don't want to ghare it. (laughs)

E. Well ... I'd like to travel and not have to ... not have
to look for a jok. ({(laughs)

J. Yeah.

E. I--you know,--I .. Right now it's--vou know,--it's good
te have information to be able to share with people that helps
paoplea. And, --you know,--1it's good if ... It's good if my
experience can .., Well, it's good if my experience can--you know-

_-help other people. But all I ... all I think about mostly is ...
Idon't ... I'm not sure if I would have been able to do all this
if I had known about it ahead of time. (laughs)

J. Yeah. Yeabh.

E. B8o,--you know--I just ... You know, it's ... I thought
I just thought about things so different when I started. I mean,
I really thought ... I guesgs I really didn't--you know--I really
didn't have any idea about ... You know,~-it's a really good ...

It's a really good living if there's weork, ~-yvou know?

J. Um=hum,

(T
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E. If there's neot work, then it's much better to have
somerhing else to do.

J. Yeah. T .. I mqﬂﬁ a plumber when I was in Washington
State, who was working as a plumber at my gister's house. He came
to fix the plumbing. But he was an operating engineer who was oub

of work
E. Yeaah.
J. 'wause his ... he felt his BPusiness Agent--vou know--sort

of wasn't sending him out on work because he waz pisgsed off at him.
Sc he was working as a plunber.

E. Yeah. Yeah. And what did he say about being a plumber?

J. trying te ... He sort of taught himself how to do the
plumbing. and he's doing residential jobs

E. Yeah. Yeah. I met ... ¥You know, back in the ... I guess
it wag in the late '80s, I met this ... T bhecame friendiy with
this woman in Vermont who's a plumber. I don't know if she's
T havern't had contact with her for a really long time. But she

she was in the union. And she was teaching... She used to teach
in the apprentice school up there. And ... she taught herself
She initially taught herzelf ... She'd bought a housa, and

everything was busted up, or whatever
J. &S0 she had to do it.
E. Yeah. Yeah. Aand then,--you know,-through a series of

whatever circumstances, whatever she had to do, she--vou know--got
~herself in the Union.

J. um-hum.

E. and--vou know,--she became ... My view, at the time, I
thought --you know--ghe was ... she appeared to be guite guccessful.

J. Um-hum.

E. I mean,--yvou know--ghe had her own life struggles--you

know,--go I don't think everything was a pille of roses for her
either. But

J. Well, I just want to ask you, what's ... what's going on

s
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for you? Why the tears? What's .. What's ... What are you
thinking, in terms of when you're looking at this retrospective of

yvour struggles?

E. Oh, well, I guess 'cause I--you know--I think, well, I'm
going to sound really negative--you know--if I say,-~you know--if
I say, well, I wouldn't recommend it for anybody,--you know,--for
any women, —-you know? You know,--I just think, if you can find
something else to do where vou don't have to (tearfully) ... where
you deon't have teo go through so much struggle,--you know--go for
it, --you know?

J. Yeah. Yeah. Well, T want to thank you for participating
in this and sharing your experience.

E. I should have brought zome Klean-ex.
J. I should have too.

E. Yeah.

TOTAL P.0O19
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